


CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from, or in reliance upon, the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Looking back on 2017, the Chinese government furthers its effort in supply-
side structural reform, and this helped unleash the vitality, drive and potential
of the Chinese economy. The Gross Domestic Product exceeded estimation
and grew at a growth rate of approximately 6.9%. In 2017, against the
backdrop of pharmaceutical reform policies, the general growth rate of
the pharmaceutical industry in China slowed down, though still exceeding
most other industries in China. In respect of pharmaceutical manufacturing,
impacted by the rapid promotion of policies such as quality consistency
evaluation for generic drugs, quality standards and capability of risk tolerance
of pharmaceutical manufacturers were further challenged, and this resulted
in the accelerated pace of differentiation of pharmaceutical manufacturers
and imminent restructuring of pharmaceutical manufacturing. In respect
of pharmaceutical business, with “two invoice system” (RZ=fl) or “one
invoice system”(—Z2#]) undertaken in some provinces in mainland China,
the industrial integration was coming, small and mid-sized enterprises faded
out in the market while large-scaled enterprises have accelerated their pace
of expansions, making the industry highly-concentrated. As such, in this year
and next few years, the industry was and will be full of challenges as well
as opportunities. The Group has to constantly monitor and consider new
developments of the industry and the guiding direction of national policies,
so as to align with the policy guidance and industry development while
enhancing its competitiveness.

In 2017, the Group continuously strengthened and developed its business
of various drugs including herbal medicine, generic drugs, transfusion and
anti-tumor drugs, mitigating the impact of new national medical policies on
the industrial enterprises. At the same time, also in accordance with industry
development, the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare food
products business continued to expand sales network and products and tried
innovative marketing models to further expand its business scale.
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Looking forward into 2018, the change in industry structure resulting from
supply-side structural reform in China will continue. Meanwhile, the Chinese
government has been setting higher standards for environmental protection.
The momentum of China's economic reform and development gradually
stabilized, and this propelled the development in the direction of pursuing
for higher quality. In general, Chinese pharmaceutical industry will maintain
a stable growing trend. In respect of pharmaceutical reform, policies such
as premium controls in medical insurance, control on proportion of drug
cost and quality consistency evaluation for generic drugs have brought
significant impact on chemical agents, leading to substantial differentiation
among pharmaceutical manufacturers. With the weakening effect of policies
on decreasing drug prices in tender processes, the industry’s recovery has
become increasingly evident, while proprietary Chinese medicines will enjoy
a greater market share owing to measures imposed by the state to facilitate
the development of Chinese medicines. In respect of pharmaceutical
business, “two invoice system” (RIZ2#l) will quicken the restructuring of
pharmaceutical industry. With the integration of pharmaceutical business,
large and strong corporations and brands, leveraging on the strength in
network and in capital, will become industry leaders, while small and mid-
sized enterprises will be taken over or being eliminated from the market,
making the market more concentrated. With numerous mergers and
acquisitions in pharmaceutical market, brand and quality advantages enjoyed
by those large and strong corporations and brands will appear clearly. The
war for large corporations and brands has come.

The Board believes that the business of the Group is developing well and
is confident about the business prospects of the Group. The Group will
leverage on the opportunities and challenges in the pharmaceutical and
healthcare industry brought by the national policies, as well as strive to
eliminate the impact of unfavourable conditions. Meanwhile, the Group will
also allocate more resources to the research and development of new drugs,
quality consistency evaluation for generic drug and product quality assurance
system, ensuring the sustainable and healthy development of the Group’s
pharmaceutical manufacturing and sales business.

On behalf of the Company and the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and staff for their
continuing support and trust in the Group.

Zhang Feng
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESNWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”), the Group was
principally engaged in the research and development, manufacturing and
selling of medicines, and the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare
food products in the PRC. The medicines being sold by the Group mainly
cover four therapeutic areas which are oncology, cardiovascular system,
respiratory system and digestive system.

Research and Development, Manufacturing and Selling of
Medicines

Currently, the Group manufactures its own medicines through the
production base (“Fuzhou Production Base”) located in lJin’an District,
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC, including herbal medicine, generic drugs,
transfusion, anti-tumor drugs and other drugs. The Fuzhou Production
Base is the only narcotic production base in Fujian Province designated by
the State and also the only medicine production base for army reserves in
Fujian Province for the General Logistics Department of the Chinese People’s
Liberation Army.

Currently, the Group's research and development work is mainly serving
by the way of independent research and development and cooperation
with external research and development institutions to meet the internal
development demands of the Group. Two pharmaceutical manufacturing
subsidiaries of the Group are high-tech enterprises. They currently possess
various new drugs and exclusive products with self-owned intellectual
property rights, including Tegafur, Gimeracil and Oteracil Potassium
Tablets (the “TGOP Tablets” E#HEF, a new drug for anti-gastric
cancer), Xiaozheng Yigan Tablets CBfEz/TA, an anti-liver-cancer drug),
Proteoglycan Tablets (24828}, for enhancing immune system), Biyuan
Capulses (& 5if23€, an anti-rhinitis medicine), Amaranth Berberine Capsules
(¥ EEZERBH, a drug for acute diarrhea) and HTK Myocardial Protection
Cardioplegic Solution (HTK.LAL/EBER, a Class Il medical device). Among
the aforesaid products, the research and development of HTK Myocardial
Protection Cardioplegic Solution of a relevant subsidiary was awarded
“Fujian Enterprise Excellent Innovation Achievement Prize” in the Year by
Fujian Province Enterprise and Entrepreneur Union (f@iE&FE{PE
FEtA®); and Amaranth Berberine Capsules was the top seller among
the antidiarrheal Chinese patent medicines in urban retail drugstores of
China in 2016 with a market share of approximately 33% according to
the information released in August 2017 by Menet (previously known as
China Pharmaceutical Economic Information Network), a pharmaceutical
information web portal.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Under the national policy in relation to quality consistency evaluation for
generic drugs promulgated in 2016, appropriate types of medicines were
proactively selected by a pharmaceutical manufacturing subsidiary of the
Group and the first batch of selected medicines was selected to proceed the
quality consistency evaluation for generic drugs in 2016, and the relevant
work is under orderly progress.

During the Year, the sales of the large-capacity injection series products were
affected by the unsatisfactory results of tendering process in some regions of
Fujian Province. Given the situation, the Group will proactively keep up with
pharmaceutical policies of Fujian Province, make proper arrangements for the
bidding, strive to win bidding in more areas and actively expand the product
sales network in 2018, thereby restrict and reverse the decrease in sales
volume of the relevant products. Meanwhile, at the end of the Year, certain
provisions for obsolete inventory and inventory write off were respectively
made by the Group against the large-capacity injection products that were
previously produced in a large scale to cope with the Designated Production
of Injections Policy (%)% & 2 4 B in Fujian Province.

The Pharmaceutical GMP Certificate of a production line for large volume
injections of glass bottles owned by a subsidiary of the Group, which has the
smaller production capacity, was withdrawn in the middle of August 2017.
The withdrawal of the certificate did not significantly affect the production
and operation and the results of the Group for the Year. According to the
current regulations of the PRC, if the Pharmaceutical GMP Certificate of
a production line has been withdrawn, the pharmaceutical manufacturer
can re-apply for the GMP certification for such production line after proper
rectification and reforms. In light of this, the subsidiary will strive to re-obtain
the Pharmaceutical GMP Certificate for relevant production line. At the same
time, the Group will increase its investment in pharmaceutical manufacturing
and quality assurance systems in 2018 for ensuring and upgrading the
Group's product quality.

Thanks to the State’s support for the development of herbal medicine
industry, as well as the increasing demand for herbal medicine products, the
sales revenue of the herbal medicine products during the Year continued its
positive growth. In addition, the TGOP Tablets have won the bids in Fujian
Province and Guangdong Province, and the sales of which is good. The sales
revenue of the TGOP Tablets for the Year recorded substantial growth as
compared with that of last year. The Group will continue to increase the
promotion of herbal medicine products and the TGOP Tablets in 2018.

R REEENRMROBRAT 2017555k

BIRE R AT

RIEERA =B — AFHEN AR
SPEMEE - A EE R TN A AR R
BEERE - TR AFERD T BHEE
QBT — B E - B ARMTEEES
P B TR -

AEREE MO HRPIRERTESR - KEET
SRFNERERFENHELS —EXE - #f
HaBR  AEER T \FEBEGIERERERE
HEERRDE  MUBERETE - HFERS
FHEEE - REAREMRAE - KB EA
MERBETRNER - A - HRIREEEZE
BREHEERRMEMEENAT TG HE
o ARBERNFEREEEHR T FEREEEM
HEITT MEERRIE

R-ZZF—tFN\ATE  AEE-KMBAFH
—IREREE N BOR AR 801 57 B A E AR )
(BERGMPEE)  ZFEENREHEAEEARSE
ENEELERFERBELEATE - RiETD
BIIRITER - WO ERGMPEE )N EER
REWER  BREECEAURZRLEERENTHE
B GMPRE - Eib - ZMBRBHE AR
MEESBFRERGMPES) - A K
SER_ZT-N\FHMABEREENEERE
BENKRA - PHRENBEAAEEERE

=
= -°

RENBERHTEEEXBRASE - URBEA
B BEEMBROREN  PRERRAFENH
SRABERTRIFIER - b5 BERFBAT
EERRENERETR  HEBRRLY  KF
EBRERFNHEERAREFERAREENE
£ o 2T~ \FAREE KB INAS P BLE R
BERANEENE -

7



8

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S T

The Group obtained the land use rights in respect of two pieces of lands
located at Aojiangyuan District, Lianjiang County, Fuzhou City, Fujian
Province, the PRC (the “Lands”) through the listing for sales (EM&EH
##) organized by the Bureau of Land Resources of Lianjiang (“Lianjiang
Land Bureau”) on 19 April 2012 to build a pharmaceutical production
base (“Lianjiang Project”). After the delivery of the Lands to the Group
by Lianjiang Land Bureau in March 2015, the Group had been proactively
conducting preliminary construction preparation work on the Lands
in respect of the Lianjiang Project, but due to various factors, the
construction progress had been slow. In light of this, the Group had actively
communicated with the relevant government departments of Lianjiang
County. On 19 October 2017, two subsidiaries of the Group, Neptunus
Fuyao Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang”)
and Neptunus lJinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Co., Ltd.
(“Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang”) respectively entered into a land resumption
agreement with Lianjiang County Land Development Centre and Lianjiang
Economic Development District Management Committee, pursuant to which
Lianjiang County Land Development Centre redeemed the Lands for a total
consideration of RMB63,869,886. As the Lianjiang Project was still in its early
stage of construction with only preparatory work, the infrastructure was not
completed and no actual operation commenced, thus the resumption of
the Lands will not bring any material impact on the Group’s normal course
of production and operation. The proceeds from the resumption of the
Lands will be used for more suitable new construction project or business
development project. In the middle of November 2017, the Group received
all consideration of the resumption of the Lands. Meanwhile, Neptunus
Fuyao Lianjiang and Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang handed over the Lands and
their ancillary assets to Lianjiang County Land Development Centre. The
resumption of the Lands did not significantly impact on the Group’s result of
the Year.

Purchase and Sales of Medicines and Healthcare Food
Products

Currently, the main products distributed by the Group are medicines and
healthcare food products, including the well-known product series of the
Neptunus Ginkgo Leaves Tablets (8 ER7EEF) and Neptunus lJinzun (/8
F£18). In the Year, Neptunus® Yinkeluo® Ginkgo Leaves Tablets was
listed in the Rui Sub-List of China Pharmaceutical Brand List (77 B85 &5e 7 2
15815 sponsored by Menet. The brands listed were the brands recorded
high growth rate by the three great terminals of Menet in the most recent
year and were selected into the Rui Sub-List through a stringent procedure.
During the evaluating process, many professional research institutions,
professionals and academics of the industry and entrepreneurs provided
plenty of professional advice and the Rui Sub-List was of relatively great
influence in China pharmaceutical industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Year, the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare food
products business continued to grow. Among which, the sales volume
through large and medium-sized chain drugstores continued to grow due to
reasons such as the increase in demands in domestic pharmaceutical retail
market and healthcare food products market, the increase in the number
of products and categories distributed by the Group, adoption of a flexible
and diversified sales policy, in-depth optimization of the sales force etc.. Due
to the implementation of “two invoice system” (RZ2l) and “one invoice
system” (—Z2#)) in the PRC, the marketing model of drugs that were sold to
terminal medical institutions through professional sales promotion companies
is still in the adjustment stage and the sales revenue of the relevant business
remains substantially unchanged. The overall sales revenue of the purchase
and sales of medicines and healthcare food products business continued to
maintain positive growth.

In order to reduce the intermediate links in pharmaceutical circulation, the
PRC government has progressively implemented “one invoice system” (—
ZH)) or “two invoice system” (MZHl) in the relevant provinces. Due to
the impact of such policies, certain pharmaceutical products which were
originally distributed through the Group are now needed to be directly
supplied to hospitals or terminal distributors by the pharmaceutical
manufacturing enterprises. To offset the impact on sales revenue brought by
the decrease in the quantities of the pharmaceutical products distributed by
the Group, the Group has proactively adjusted its business model and has
started to provide sales management services of pharmaceutical products to
relevant pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises. So far, the business is
being carried out progressively.

In 2018, the Group will proactively leverage on the opportunities and
challenges in the pharmaceutical circulation business brought by the national
medical policies as well as strive the impact of unfavourable conditions,
so as to maintain the growth of the purchase and sales of medicines and
healthcare food products business.

Environment, Society and Governance

The Group has been giving emphasis and taking actions in the aspects
of environment, society and governance, including: constantly improving
production efficiency, conserved resources and enhanced employees’
awareness of environmental protection. Regarding production, the output
corresponding to unit carbon emission increases, the pollution and the
emission of hazardous substance which are in violation of laws and
regulations are banned. Regarding office management, office supplies and
energy consumption are conserved. Also, the Group actively improved the
working environment and committed to social responsibility.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S T

During the Year, the Company engaged a professional third party institution
to assist the Company in conducting the comprehensive communication
(from various dimensions) with stakeholders by way of face-to-face
communication, telephone interview, questionnaire and survey. The
relevant results are not only the important reference to which we review
and promote the sustainable development agenda of the Group, but also
provide a powerful basis for the material selection and preparation of our
environmental, social and governance report.

The environmental, social and governance report prepared by the Company
pursuant to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules will be published within
three months following the release of the Company’s annual report.

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

With the Chinese government’s continual reforms on the pharmaceutical
industry, pharmaceutical enterprises will face more stringent regulations.
Although this may create short-term operating pressures, the Group
believes that a better regulated market will ultimately bring opportunities
to pharmaceutical enterprises in China and keep the pharmaceutical
industry grow in the long term. The Group believes that the growth of
the pharmaceutical industry in China is supported by a combination of
favourable factors, including the ageing population, the overall two-child
policy, Chinese government’s continual investment of resources and funds
in the pharmaceutical industry, and the rising income level and better
affordability of domestic consumers. Going forward, the Group will leverage
on the opportunities and challenges in the pharmaceutical and healthcare
industry brought by the national policies, as well as strive to eliminate the
impact of unfavourable conditions. Meanwhile, the Group will also allocate
more resources to the research and development of new drugs, quality
consistency evaluation for generic drug and product quality assurance
system, ensuring the sustainable and healthy development of the Group’s
pharmaceutical manufacturing and sales business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue for the Year was approximately RMB790,286,000
(2016: approximately RMB759,111,000), representing an increase of
approximately 4.11% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. For the revenue, approximately RMB427,022,000 which amounted to
approximately 54.03% of the revenue was derived from the manufacturing
and selling of medicines segment, while approximately RMB363,264,000
which amounted to approximately 45.97% of the revenue was derived
from the sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products
segment. During the Year, the revenue from the manufacturing and selling
of medicines segment remained basically the same as compared with last
year's while the revenue of the sales and distribution of medicines and
healthcare products segment increased by approximately 10.73%. Thereby
the total revenue of the Group had an overall increase. In the Year, as
relevant provinces in the mainland China progressively implemented “one
invoice system” (—Z24#ll) or “two invoice system” (FWZ2) in pharmaceutical
circulation, certain relevant businesses of the Group’s sales and distribution
of medicines and healthcare products segment were gradually changed
from the purchase and distribution business model to pharmaceutical sales
management service business model. The Group's revenue derived from
sales management services of pharmaceutical products in the Year was
approximately RMB11,215,000, which amounted to approximately 3.09%
of the revenue of the sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare
products segment.

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was approximately 54%
(2016: approximately 51%), representing a slight increase of approximately
3 percentage points as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to the fact that
(i) after many provinces in the mainland China progressively implemented
“two invoice system” (MZ=l) in pharmaceutical circulation in the Year,
pharmaceutical manufacturers’ invoiced sales revenue increased, thereby
the gross margin increased accordingly. And with the overall promotion and
implementation of the “two invoice system” (B2 ), relevant influence will
gradually grow and reflect; and (ii) affected by the change of tender policy in
Fujian Province, the sales structure of the Group’s manufacturing and selling
of medicines segment has changed, and there was a relative decline in sales
volume of products with lower profit margin during the Year and there was
a relative increase in sales volume of products with higher profit margin
during the Year.

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit was approximately
RMB425,031,000 (2016: approximately RMB387,206,000), representing
an increase of approximately 9.77% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in gross profit was mainly due to (i) the
increase in the Group’s gross profit margin during the Year; and (ii) an overall
increase in the Group's revenue, as a result of the increase in the sales scale
of the sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products segment.
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During the Year, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses were
approximately RMB262,777,000 (2016: approximately RMB225,786,000),
representing an increase of approximately 16.38% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the fact that (i) as the sales scale of the sales
and distribution of medicines and healthcare products segment increased,
its sales expenses increased accordingly; (ii) the successive implementation
of the “two invoice system” (RIZEfl) across the country and the
implementation of the “one invoice system” (—Z2#l) in Fujian province
resulted a significant increase in sales expenses as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

During the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses were approximately
RMB51,523,000 (2016: approximately RMB50,441,000), which increased
approximately 2.15% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year.

During the Year, the Group’'s other operating expenses amounted to
approximately RMB46,942,000 (2016: approximately RMB29,200,000),
representing a significant increase of approximately 60.76% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. The increase in other operating
expenses was mainly due to the fact that (i) during the Year, the Group
accelerated the process to push forward the quality consistency evaluation
for generic drugs. The relevant expenses incurred from the quality
consistency evaluation for generic drugs were very high and reckoned
in the research and development costs during the Year, which caused a
significant increase in research and development costs as compared with
the corresponding period of last year; and (ii) after the Fujian government
launched the Designated Production of Injections Policy (%% E Bh4E EE IR
%K) in 2015, the Group’s manufacturing and selling of medicines segment
over-produced injection products to ensure supply. But the policy was
cancelled later, which caused inventory backlog of the injection products.
Certain provisions for obsolete inventory and inventory write off were made
respectively against relevant overstocked injection products by the end of the
Year.
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During the Year, the Group's finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB3,229,000 (2016: approximately RMB3,886,000), representing a
significant decrease of approximately 16.91%. The decrease in finance costs
was mainly because the Group has repaid part of the bank borrowings and
the average loan rate decreased slightly.

Due to the above reasons, the Group's profit after tax decreased from
approximately RMB72,817,000 of the corresponding period of last year, to
approximately RMB55,429,000 of the Year. Profit attributable to the owners
of the Company decreased from approximately RMB62,692,000 of the
corresponding period of last year, to approximately RMB50,257,000 of the
Year, representing a decrease of approximately 19.84%.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group usually finances its operating and investing activities with its
internal financial resources and bank loans. The Group’s transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and the Group reviews its working capital
and finance requirements on a regular basis.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s short-term bank borrowings
amounted to RMB30,000,000. Details of banking facilities please refer to
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Shareholder’s Entrusted Loan

The Company obtained a shareholder’s entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000
from Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-
engineering”) through an entrusted arrangement with a bank. Neptunus
Bio-engineering had undertaken to the Company that it would not demand
repayment of the above-mentioned shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and
until: (1) the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not
adversely affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives
as set out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August 2005
(the "Prospectus”); (2) each of the independent non-executive Directors
was of the opinion that the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted
loan would not adversely affect the operations of the Company and/or the
implementation of its business objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and
the Company would make an announcement in respect of the decision
of the independent non-executive Directors made under (2); and (3) the
Company had a positive cash flow and had retained profits in the relevant
financial year.
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NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB470,663,000. Current assets comprised cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB350,724,000, inventories of approximately
RMB146,468,000, trade and other receivables of approximately
RMB203,041,000. Current liabilities comprised trade and other payables
of approximately RMB176,949,000, interest-bearing bank borrowings to
be repaid within one year of RMB30,000,000, current tax of approximately
RMB13,220,000, entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000 and deferred
revenue of approximately RMB401,000. The net current assets increased
approximately by RMB104,990,000 as compared with that of approximately
RMB365,673,000 as at 31 December 2016. The increase in net current
assets as compared to that on 31 December 2016 was mainly due to the
fact that (i) as sales scale of the Group increased, cash and cash equivalents
aggregately increased by approximately RMB25,529,000; (ii) trade and other
payables decreased by approximately RMB10,175,000; and (iii) interest-
bearing bank borrowings decreased by RMB70,000,000.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, banking facilities of the Group of RMB30,000,000
were secured by pledge of its buildings and prepaid lease payments and the
pledged buildings and prepaid lease payments were stated at an aggregate
value of approximately R\MB94,038,000.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

During the Year, the Group’s operating revenue, major selling costs and
capital expenditure were denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group's cash and cash equivalents were mainly denominated in RMB.
As such, the foreign currency risk facing the Group is limited. Currently, the
Group has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenue and segment results by business and region of the Group
for the Year are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has contracted commitments for future
capital expenditure of approximately RMB430,000. The Board believes that
such capital expenditure can be financed by the Group’s bank deposits and
bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant contingent liability.

MAJOR INVESTMENT PLANS
During the Year, the Group did not make major investments.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 1,231 staff (2016:
1,251).

During the Year, the staff costs including directors’ remuneration which
amounted to approximately RMB71,511,000 (2016: approximately
RMB73,967,000). The salaries and fringe benefits of the Group’s employees
remained competitive. The employees’ incentives were reviewed and
determined annually pursuant to the remuneration and bonus policies of the
Group based on the performance of the employees. The Group also provided
various other benefits to its employees.

Compared with 31 December 2016, there was no significant movement in
the number of employees of the Group at the end of the Year.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe benefits of the
employees and rewarded employees in accordance with the Group's business
performance. In addition, training and development opportunities for the
employees were also provided by the Group.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (5R#%), aged 45, has been appointed as the chairman of
the Board and the compliance officer of the Company since June 2011. He
obtained a MBA degree from University of Technology, Sydney. Mr. Zhang
studied in Goteborg University, Sweden. He was a member of the 10th and
11th Jilin Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the deputy chairman of the 10th and 11th session of Jilin
Youth Federation (F#& SFEHEA €). He is a member of the 13th National
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a standing
committee member of the 12th Jilin Provincial Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the deputy chairman of the 12th
session of Jilin Youth Federation (E#M%& & FHE ), the president of the
8th session of council of Jilin Province Youth Entrepreneurs Association (&
MESFLEKHE) and the deputy chairman of the 11th Jilin Federation
of Industry and Commerce (FME LimlE). Mr. Zhang was the general
manager of Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen
Neptunus Tongai Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd., the
deputy general manager and the chief marketing officer of Neptunus Bio-
engineering. He is currently the deputy chairman of the 7th session of the
board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the controlling shareholder
of the Company which directly and indirectly holds 73.51% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company, a director of Shenzhen Neptunus
Group Company Limited, and Ascendent Bio-Technology Company Limited,
the legal representative of Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical
Company Limited, the chairman of the board of directors and the legal
representative of Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Company Limited,
Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Fuzhou
Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

Mr. Xu Yan He (%:37%F1), aged 60, has been appointed as an executive
Director since June 2011. On 3 March 2016, he was appointed as the
general manager and authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Xu
graduated from Zhejiang Engineering College, the PRC, with a bachelor’s
degree in 1982, and has nearly 30 years of experience in pharmaceutical
manufacturing industry in China. He was a member of the 11th and 12th
Fujian Provincial People’s Congress. He is a member of the 13th Fujian
Provincial People’s Congress, the standing deputy president of Fujian
Pharmaceutical Profession Association (1R824 EZE/TEWME), the deputy
president of Fujian Pharmaceutical Association (f8#2& £ &) and Fujian
Medical Insurance Association (f2E2& EEIRM I E). Mr. Xu is a director
of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Fuzhou
Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., legal representative
of Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd., the chairman of the board of directors
and the legal representative of Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang)
Comapany Limited and Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang)
Company Limited. Mr. Xu has received a number of recognition, including
Outstanding Entrepreneur in Fujian and Outstanding Pharmacist in China.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (2I5F), aged 59, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since June 2011. Mr. Liu graduated from Nankai University, the PRC
in 1997, with a doctoral degree in Economics and a postdoctoral degree
in Management. As a professor, he is a renowned expert in corporate
management and development strategies. Mr. Liu was the assistant to
the secretary and head of Research and Consulting Department of China
Development Institute in Shenzhen, China (48é& FZEFFTRT(R B e 3,
and the independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering. He led and
participated in a number of national key research projects and corporate
consulting programmes. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in corporate
management and capital operation. He is currently a director of the 7th
session of the board of directors and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering,
a director of Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical Company
Limited, Ascendent Bio-Technology Company Limited, Neptunus Fuyao
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Comapany Limited and Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Company Limited.

Ms. Yu Lin (F#), aged 60, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
since February 2005. Ms. Yu graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University of
the PRC, and has more than 30 years of experience in biochemical and
pharmaceutical industries in the PRC. Ms. Yu was the director and vice-
president of Neptunus Bio-engineering and was responsible for the research
and development of new products. Currently, she is the legal representative
and the chairman of the board of directors of Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Technology Research Company Limited (7315 T &8 &Rl
bt BBR A R]) and a director of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical
Comapany Limited.

Mr. Song Ting Jiu (R#LAR), aged 62, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since January 2014. Mr. Song graduated from Northeast Dianli
University in 1982. Mr. Song was engaged in the macroscopic and strategic
research regarding energy and the State’s economic development at the
Energy Research Institute under Chinese Academy of Sciences and was
granted the First Class Award of the State Scientific and Technological
Progress Award during such period. Since 1985, he has been engaged in
financial management and was appointed the positions of office supervisor,
deputy head and head at the Branch and Sub-branch of the Bank of China
in Shenzhen Municipality. Since 2002, he started taking tasks regarding
enterprise management and was the deputy general manager at Guangdong
Heng Feng Investment Company Limited (BEREZHREFRAA]), deputy
general manager at Shenzhen Heng Feng Real Property Company (%3118
L REHE/NT]), managing deputy general manager at Heng Feng Hai Yue
Hotel ([BZ)81%)H)5), general manager of Jiangsu Neptunus Health Food
Company Limited, vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, and the
deputy general manager of the Company.
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Mr. Zhao Wen Liang (#322), aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 March 2016. He was re-designated to non-executive Director
on 6 June 2016. Mr. Zhao graduated from Harbin Normal University and
has been engaged in the sales management of pharmaceutical products.
He joined Neptunus Bio-engineering since 1998 and previously served as
regional sales manager as well as other positions. Mr. Zhao joined the Group
in January 2013 and was the general manager of Shenzhen Neptunus
Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited. He is currently a director of
Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Fuzhou
Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Comapany Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus
Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Company Limited, and an executive director
and legal representative of Shenzhen Quanyao Network Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.CRYII T & B4R B 245 R 2 7). He has over 10 years of experience in the
marketing management of pharmaceutical products.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon (£7k#), aged 60, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since August 2005. Mr. Yick holds a
bachelor’s degree in business administration, majoring in accounting, from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants in England. Mr. Yick has more than
30 years of experience in auditing, direct investment, investment banking
and corporate advisory services. In addition, Mr. Yick is an independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited and China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited (the shares of these two companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange), an independent non-executive
director, the convener of the nomination committee and a member of the
strategy committee of Chengdu Xinrong Environment Co., Ltd. (the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), and an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration and nomination
committee and a member of the audit and compliance committee of Nexteer
Automotive Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung (%3z%), aged 51, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since August 2005. Mr. Poon
obtained his bachelor’s degree in mathematics with minor in economics
and marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and
was further admitted to the MBA degree by the University of Hull, United
Kingdom, in 1996. Mr. Poon has been appointed as an Honorary Institute
Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong since April 2002. He has been teaching marketing-related
subjects for the master’s degree in science program, MBA program and
Global Executive MBA program (OneMBA) of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Since June 2008, he has been appointed as visiting Adjunct Associate
Professor in the Department of Marketing of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. In addition, Mr. Poon has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since March 2016.

Mr. Zhang lian Zhou (E&I5}), aged 48, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 21 January 2016. Mr. Zhang
graduated from China Youth University of Political Studies with a B.A. degree
in 1990, from Beijing Foreign Studies University with a LL.B degree in 1992,
and from Boston University with a LL.M degree in 2002. He had been an
assistant professor of International Trade Law at Guangdong University of
Technology from 1992 to 1993. Mr. Zhang has been in private practice
since 1993 when he was qualified to practice law in the PRC. He is now a
partner of Beijing Anjie (Shenzhen) Law Firm, an arbitrator of the Arbitration
Committee of Shenzhen and the Arbitration Committee of Hainan Province.

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong (B&##AE), aged 62, has been appointed as a supervisor
of the Company since June 2008. Mr. Xiong obtained a doctorate degree in
accountancy from Xiamen University in 1992. Mr. Xiong was appointed as
an independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering up to August 2007.
Mr. Xiong is currently an accounting professor of Shenzhen University. Mr.
Xiong is also the independent director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (AWA &
RN ABR AT (stock code: 000014), China National Accord Medicines
Corporation Ltd. (BIZE&EE—SEEXRMH AR AF) (stock code: 000028),
Shenzhen Wongtee International Enterprise Co., Ltd. (FIITh 2 BB 12
%15 BBR A 7)) (stock code: 000056) and Shenzhen Laibao Hi-Tech Co., Ltd.
CRYIFHE SR B R 2 7)) (stock code: 002106). The Shares of these four
companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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5% EEREAERERE

Mr. Wang Bin (E#7), aged 57, has been appointed as a supervisor of the
Company since June 2011. Mr. Wang graduated from Precision Instrument
Department of Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC, with a master’s
degree in 1986. He was a teacher in Precision Instrument Department of
Harbin Institute of Technology, the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Jingshan Group Joint-stock Company Limited (&I ILEB D AR A R),
the chief human resources officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company
Limited (between 1997 and 2000) and the deputy dean of Harbin Institute of
Technology Shenzhen Graduate School.

Ms. Li Ting (Z1&), aged 36, has been appointed as an employee
representative supervisor of the Company since 30 December 2016. Ms. Li
obtained a bachelor's degree of science from Guangdong Pharmaceutical
University in 2004 and a master degree of commerce (advanced) from
the University of Queensland, Australia in 2008 with major in professional
accounting. Ms. Li joined the Company in September 2009 and previously
served as a general ledger accountant, accounting supervisor, assistant
to Board secretary (financial controller) as well as other positions. Since
February 2016, she has been serving as the director of the Board office of
the Company. And she started to hold a concurrent post as the deputy
director of compliance in the risk control and compliance department of
the Company since July 2017. Ms. Li possesses China securities practice
qualification and China intermediate accounting certification. She has rich
experience in finance, accounting and listed company governance.

Senior Management

Ms. Lee Mei Yi (Z=31#), aged 50, has been appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company since 1 December 2008. Ms. Lee is a director
of Corporate Services Department of Tricor Services Limited and a fellow
member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lee has over 20
years of experience in the corporate secretarial area.

Ms. Mu Ling Xia (5% &), aged 47, has been appointed as the joint company
secretary, the Board secretary, the financial controller and the authorized
representative of the Company since April 2016, and vice general manager
of the Company since 25 June 2017. Ms. Mu graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong
University majoring in applied economics and obtained a master degree
in economics. Ms. Mu is a qualified board secretary of listed companies as
recognised by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and a qualified professional
accountant in China. She also has China securities practice qualification and
is a affiliate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Ms. Mu previously served as the board secretary of Shenzhen Overglobe
Development Company Limited (RIITHBEEBRHDERAT), the
director of the board office of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the securities
affairs representative authorised by the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-
engineering as well as other positions. Ms. Mu has been working on areas
such as listed company securities, financing and management for nearly
20 years and she possesses rich working experience in listed company
governance, capital operations, information disclosure, investor relations
management, investment and financing.
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Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present the report of Directors and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sales of medicines, the purchase and sales of
medicines and healthcare food products.

Business Review

Details of business review during the Year are set out on pages 6 to 10 of
this annual report.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last two financial years ended 31 December 2017, and the
published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
Year is set out on pages 57 to 162.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the distribution of any dividends for the
Year (2016: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

There has been no movement for the Company’s share capital during the
Year, details of which are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and Company during the
Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2017, the Company had no distributable reserves, while its
accumulated loss, calculated in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association and relevant rules and regulations, amounted to approximately
RMB102,047,000.
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Report of the Directors
FEGHE

Capitalized Interest
The Group has no capitalized interest during the Year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sales Or Redemption of the Listed Shares
of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the
Company'’s listed shares during the Year. The Company and its subsidiaries
also did not redeem, purchase or cancel any of their redeemable securities.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 13.19% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to approximately 4.06% of the
total sales for the Year. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 41.09% of the total purchases for the Year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 20.96% of the total purchases for the Year.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, the supervisors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Company’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and supervisors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report, and their terms of employment were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Feng 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2017

Mr. Xu Yan He
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Report of the Directors

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June AEELEE RZZE—FAAZFTEABKX
2017 BLE - RE=F

Ms. Yu Lin 3 years from her re-appointment on 25 June Fwmzzt RZE—tFAAAZ+HEABK
2017 BLE - RE=F

Mr. Song Ting Jiu 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June RIEAKE RZFE—EFNAZ+THERHEHBRX
2017 BLE - RE=F

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June HWYRLEE RZZE—+tFEXAZ+HHBRX
2017 BLE - RE=F

Independent non-executive Directors BYKHITES

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June SKEELEE RZIE—tFXNAZ+HRHEHBX
2017 BLRE - RE=F

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June FEEBEE RZZ—tFXAZt+HHABKX
2017 BLE - RE=F

Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June Z8l/eE RN-ZE—t+tFEAZ-+RHAEABX
2017 BLE - RE=F

Supervisors E=

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June FRBRREE R-F—EFAAZTRAAK
2017 BERE - BRHEI=F

Mr. Wang Bin 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June B RZF—tHF X NAZTHABR
2017 BERE - BHI=F

Ms. Li Ting 3 years from her re-appointment on 25 June FErL R-ZF—tHFX NAZTHABR
2017 BERE - BHEI=F

The Company confirms that as at the date of this report, it has received ANRIERBEARE B - HEKESKEL

annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, £ OBRSAENRERINSERAFBELIE 2 HE

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou. The Company still considers RE - ARFANRR=BBULIIFPTEERAF

the three independent non-executive Directors during the Year to be EE GEM LR AIE 5.09 1RGSR E 2 B

independent pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. 1 -
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Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with a term up to 24 June 2020 and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Company. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

According to the service contracts entered into between the Company
and its supervisors, (i) the Company shall pay Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong the
remuneration of RMB30,000 per annum for his service as a supervisor; (ii)
the Company shall pay Mr. Wang Bin the remuneration of RMB30,000 per
annum for his service as a supervisor; and (i) Ms. Li Ting, the employee
representative supervisor, is entitled to a supervisor's allowance of
RMB20,000 per annum for her service as a supervisor.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees and their remuneration are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors' Interests in Contracts

Save for the service contracts of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company as disclosed above, there were no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or its controlling shareholder
was a party and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

Share Option Scheme, Convertible Securities and
Warrants

Up to 31 December 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries have not
adopted any share option scheme and have not granted any option,
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

At no time during the Year and up to the date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors of the Company or an associate company.

During the Year, a Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Liability
Insurance is in place to provide appropriate cover for the directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Group. However, such insurance
coverage shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to such director, supervisor and senior management.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives in the Listed
Securities

As far as the Directors or supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2017, the interests and short position of the Directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be and were recorded in the register to be kept by the Company, or were
required, pursuant to Rule 5.46 to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Report of the Directors
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Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company:

RARBEEOEERD 2R

Approximate
percentage of
associated

Number of corporation’s

Name of shares in issued

associated associated share capital

Type of corporation corporation {hAEE LS

Director/Chief Executive Capacity interests piEld BEEEEE ERITRAEZ

BES BETBAER 54 ERER EEAR ZROHE BOBEDL

Mr. Zhang Feng (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,331,093 0.05%
SREESEAE (Wit (@) EalEA 8 A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (Note (b)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 8,883,793 0.34%
Bl 5B &R (M5 b)) Em=EAA 8 A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Ms. Yu Lin (Note (c)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 2,144,660 0.08%
Tzt (Hat () EnEAA f@A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Mr. Song Ting Jiu (Note (d)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,516,200 0.06%
REA T (H15F () Em=EAA 8 A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang (Note (e)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 700,000 0.03%
SR E (H1aE () BB A f@A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Ms. Mu Ling Xia (Note (f)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 656,000 0.02%
REBRLT (WD) Em=EAA fE A  Bio-engineering

BEEY
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

®

Mr. Zhang Feng, chairman of the Board of the Company and deputy chairman of
the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was beneficially interested
in approximately 0.05% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held directly
and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13%
was indirectly held through Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental Investment Company
Limited (“Neptunus Oriental”).

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun, non-executive Director of the Company and director
and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was beneficially interested in
approximately 0.34% of the entire issued capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering,
the Company'’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held directly and indirectly
the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13% was indirectly
held through Neptunus Oriental.

Ms. Yu Lin, non-executive Director of the Company, was beneficially interested
in approximately 0.08% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held directly
and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13%
was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Mr. Song Ting Jiu, non-executive Director of the Company, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.06% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 3.13% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang, non-executive Director of the Company, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.03% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 3.13% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Ms. Mu Ling Xia, vice general manager of the Company, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.02% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company of which 70.38% was directly held
and 3.13% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, or were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be and were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company, or were required, pursuant to Rule 5.46
to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors and supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2017, the interests and/or short positions held by shareholders
(not being a Director, a supervisor or a chief executive of the Company) in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Y

FERRNR G0 K ARG ED

BARARESRESZMM  RZT—tF+=A
=t+—H BRRE(WHFERRAFEF  EFELES
TTHAB)IRIBEFESF R EENE 336 1KAHK
N RETE 2 B MATRE SR A A D BIRR 1 Sk RA AR
B A E A 5 A AN R Rl (A s & sk
BT

RARRBMD 2R

Approximate

Approximate percentage of
Number of percentage of the Company’s
domestic all the issued
shares held domestic shares share capital
BB 1hEAE EARRE
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity RER RERK EBITRAEAN
FTERRER 514 RHBE BHEDL BHEDIH
Neptunus Bio-engineering (Note (a)) Beneficial owner 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
BEEY (BT @) EmfEAA
Interest in controlled 52,464,500 4.19% 3.13%
corporation
R thEEER
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) (Note (b)) corporation
Y BEEEROERAR REGEERER
(D8E&R D (Mt ®b)
Shenzhen Neptunus Holding Group Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%
Company Limited (“Neptunus Holding"”) corporation
(Previously known as “Shenzhen AR HI A E R
Yinhetong Investment Company
Limited”) (Note (c))
wRYEEEREEER AR
(DEEER D (RiRE DRYITH R
WEEBRAT) (M)
Mr. Zhang Si Min (Note (d)) Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%
RERSCE (HaE () corporation
PR E R
Ms. Wang Jin Song (Note (e)) Interest of spouse 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%

EIRLE (Het(e) LB
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

Neptunus Bio-engineering was deemed to be interested in the 52,464,500
domestic shares of the Company held by Neptunus Oriental as the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Oriental was beneficially owned by Neptunus
Bio-engineering. Neptunus Bio-engineering was also directly interested in
1,181,000,000 domestic shares of the Company. Therefore, Neptunus Bio-
engineering was directly and indirectly interested in 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company.

Neptunus Group was deemed to be interested in the 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Group was
beneficially interested in approximately 45.96% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Neptunus Holding was deemed to be interested in 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Holding was
beneficially interested in approximately 59.68% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Group, which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately
45.96% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Mr. Zhang Si Min (“Mr. Zhang”) was deemed to be interested in 1,233,464,500
domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares
referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Mr. Zhang
was beneficially interested in 70% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Holding and the entire issued share capital of Shenzhen Haihe Investment
and Development Company Limited (“Haihe”), which in turn was beneficially
interested in approximately 59.68% and 20% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Group respectively. Neptunus Group was beneficially interested
in approximately 45.96% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering.

Ms. Wang Jin Song (“Ms. Wang”) was deemed to be interested in
1,233,464,500 domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel
of shares referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Ms.
Wang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang and was taken to be beneficially interested in
any shares held by Mr. Zhang.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and supervisors of the Company are
not aware of any other persons (except the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company) who held any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2017.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transactions of the Group exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements during the Year are set out
below:

Nepstar Distribution Agreement

On 17 December 2014, the Company entered into a distribution agreement
("Nepstar Distribution Agreement”) with Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Nepstar”) (a company indirectly owned by Mr. Zhang
Si Min, a brother of the chairman of the Company’s Board, and therefore a
connected person of the Company), pursuant to which the Group agreed to
supply self-manufactured drugs to Nepstar and its subsidiaries. The annual
caps of such transactions for the year 2015, 2016 and 2017 would not
exceed RMB21,000,000, R\MB24,000,000 and RMB26,000,000 respectively.

During the Year, the Group has supplied drugs of approximately
RMB15,596,000 in total to Nepstar and its subsidiaries, which has not
exceeded the annual cap of the above agreement.

Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement

On 17 December 2014, the Company entered into a distribution agreement
(the "Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement”) with Shenzhen Neptunus
Jiankang Technology Development Company Limited (FIIT/& T fEBERHR
ZERABMPRAT]) (“Neptunus Jiankang”), a fellow subsidiary and a connected
person of the Company, pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
and distribute various food and healthcare food products manufactured by
Neptunus Jiankang and its subsidiaries. The annual caps of such transactions
for the year of 2015, 2016 and 2017 would not exceed RMB6,000,000,

RMB7,500,000 and RMB9,500,000 respectively.

During the Year, the Group purchased various food and healthcare food
products in aggregate of approximately RMB7,389,000 from Neptunus
Jiankang and its subsidiaries, which did not exceed the annual cap of the
above agreement.
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Hangzhou Neptunus Purchase and Sales Framework Agreement

On 29 July 2016, Neptunus Changjian entered into a purchase and sales
framework agreement (the “Hangzhou Neptunus Purchase and Sales
Framework Agreement”) with Hangzhou Neptunus Bio-engineering Co.,
Ltd. (B EAEY TIEABRAF) (“Hangzhou Neptunus”), which is wholly-
owned by Neptunus Group (a connected person of the Company by being
the controlling shareholder of Neptunus Bio-engineering) and therefore
a fellow subsidiary and a connected person of the Company, pursuant to
which Neptunus Changjian will purchase certain food and healthcare food
products manufactured by Hangzhou Neptunus for distribution in the PRC.
The annual caps of such transactions would not exceed RMB12,000,000,
RMB 14,000,000 and RMB16,000,000 for the period from 29 July 2016 to 31
December 2016 and for the year of 2017 and 2018 respectively.

On 17 October 2017, the Company and Neptunus Group (a connected
person of the Company) entered into a purchase framework agreement (the
"Healthcare Food and Food Purchase Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group will purchase certain food and healthcare food products
from Neptunus Group and its subsidiaries (excluding the Group) (the
“Intermediate Parent Group”) for distribution in the PRC for the period
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The Healthcare Food and
Food Purchase Framework Agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 15 December 2017 and became effective
on 1 January 2018. After the execution of the Healthcare Food and
Food Purchase Framework Agreement, the purchase of certain food and
healthcare food products by the Group from the Intermediate Parent Group
will be governed by it. To ensure that the relevant purchase of certain food
and healthcare food between the two groups will be governed by the same
set of terms and conditions under the Healthcare Food and Food Purchase
Framework Agreement, the Hangzhou Neptunus Phurchase and Sales
Framework Agreement was terminated on 1 January 2018.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased food and healthcare
food products of approximately RMB10,981,000 from Hangzhou Neptunus,
which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Jiamusi Neptunus Purchase and Sales Framework Agreement

On 29 July 2016, Neptunus Changjian and Jiamusi Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Jiamusi Neptunus”), a fellow subsidiary and a connected
person of the Company, entered into a purchase and sales framework
agreement (the “Jamusi Neptunus Purchase and Sales Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which Jamusi Neptunus will purchase certain
pharmaceutical products from Neptunus Changjian for the distribution
within the Heilongjiang Province and the surrounding areas. The annual
caps of such transactions for the period from 29 July 2016 to 31 December
2016 and for the year of 2017 and 2018, would not exceed RMB5,000,000,
RMB6,000,000 and RMB7,200,000 respectively.
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On 30 June 2017, the Company and Neptunus Group (a connected person
of the Company) entered into a sales framework agreement (the “Neptunus
Group Sales Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed
to sell certain self-manufactured or distributed products, including certain
pharmaceutical products and healthcare food products, to the Intermediate
Parent Group for the period from 30 June 2017 to 31 December 2019.
After the execution of the Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement,
the sales of self-manufactured or distributed products (including certain
pharmaceutical products and healthcare food products) by the Group to the
Intermediate Parent Group will be governed by it. To ensure that the relevant
sales of pharmaceutical products and healthcare food products between the
two groups will be governed by the same set of terms and conditions under
the Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement, the Jiamusi Neptunus
Purchase and Sales Framework Agreement was terminated on 30 June
2017 and the transaction amounts under the Jiamusi Neptunus Phurchase
and Sales Framework Agreement for the year 2017 will be governed by the
Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement.

Neptunus Shenyu Distribution Framework Agreement

On 9 March 2017, Neptunus Changjian and Shenzhen Neptunus Shenyu
Industrial Company Limited (“Neptunus Shenyu”), a fellow subsidiary and a
connected person of the Company, entered into a distribution framework
agreement (the “Neptunus Shenyu Distribution Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian agreed to purchase various daily
consumable products from Neptunus Shenyu for distribution on a non-
exclusive basis in the pharmacy retail chain stores in the PRC. The cap of such
transactions for the period from 9 March 2017 to 31 December 2017 would
not exceed RMB5,000,000.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased various daily
consumable products of approximately RMB96,000 in total from Neptunus
Shenyu, which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement

As mentioned aforesaid, on 30 June 2017, the Company and Neptunus
Group (a connected person of the Company) entered into the Neptunus
Group Sales Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to sell certain self-manufactured or distributed products, including certain
pharmaceutical products and healthcare food products, to the Intermediate
Parent Group. The annual caps of such transactions for the period from
30 June 2017 to 31 December 2017 and for the year of 2018 and 2019
would not exceed RMB22,000,000, RMB27,000,000 and RMB34,000,000
respectively.

During the Year, the Group has sold products of approximately 13,342,000
in total to the Intermediate Parent Group, which did not exceed the annual
cap of the above agreement.
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Sales Management Service Framework Agreement

On 1 September 2017, Neptunus Changjian and Neptunus Pharmaceutical
(@ wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus Group and therefore a fellow
subsidiary and a connected person of the Company) entered into a sales
management service framework agreement for pharmaceutical products
(the “Sales Management Service Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which Neptunus Changjian agreed to provide sales management service of
pharmaceutical products to Neptunus Pharmaceutical. The annual caps of
such transactions for the period from 1 September 2017 to 31 December
2017 and the year of 2018 would not exceed RMB14,000,000 and
RMB25,000,000 respectively.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has provided sales management
service of pharmaceutical products of approximately RMB11,215,000 in total
to Neptunus Pharmaceutical, which did not exceed the annual cap of the
above agreement.

Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that
the Nepstar Distribution Agreement, the Neptunus Jiankang Distribution
Agreement, the Hangzhou Neptunus Purchase and Sales Framework
Agreement, the Neptunus Shenyu Distribution Framework Agreement, the
Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement and the Sales Management
Service Framework Agreement (1) were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (2) are on normal commercial
terms and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board confirming that
the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;
(i) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or services

by the Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.
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Continuing Connected Transaction Not Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transaction of the Group not exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements within the Year are set out
below:

Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement

On 10 December 2015, Neptunus Changjian entered into a distribution
agreement (the “Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement”)
with Neptunus Pharmaceutical (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus
Group and therefore a fellow subsidiary and a connected person of the
Company), pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian will purchase various
pharmaceutical products manufactured by Neptunus Pharmaceutical and
distribute such products within the PRC for the period from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2018. The Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement
became effective on 4 March 2016, upon the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting. On 11
October 2016, the same parties entered into a supplementary agreement
(the “Supplementary Agreement”), pursuant to which, upon the approval
of independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 23 December 2016, the annual caps under the Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement for the period from 4 March 2016
to 31 December 2016 and for the year 2017 and 2018, were revised to
RMB91,100,000, RMB 114,000,000 and RMB 143,500,000 respectively.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased pharmaceutical
products of approximately RMB75,170,000 from Neptunus Pharmaceutical,
which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that
the Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement (as supplemented
by the Supplementary Agreement) (1) was entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (2) are on normal commercial
terms and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board comfirming that
the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;

(i) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

Competing Interests

On 21 August 2005, Neptunus Bio-engineering, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, entered into an agreement with the Company containing
undertakings relating to non-competition and preferential rights of
investments (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”), pursuant to which
Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the Company and its associates
(among others), that as long as the securities of the Company are listed on
GEM (previously known as Growth Enterprise Market):

1. it will not, and will procure its associates not to, whether within or
outside the PRC, directly or indirectly (other than those indirectly
held as a result of the equity interest in any listed company or its
subsidiaries), participate in or operate any business in whatever form,
or produce any products (the usage of which is the same as or similar
to that of the products of the Company) which may constitute direct
or indirect competition to the business operated by the Company from
time to time; and

2. it will not, and will procure its associates not to, hold any interest,
whether within or outside the PRC, in any company or organization
(directly or indirectly, other than those indirectly held as a result of
its equity interest in any listed company or its subsidiaries) when the
business of such company or entity will (or may) compete directly or
indirectly with the business of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
FEGHE

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Undertakings, at a time when the
Non-Competition Undertakings are subsisting, whenever Neptunus Bio-
engineering or any its associates enters into any negotiations, within or
outside the PRC, in relation to any new investment projects which may
compete with the existing and future business of the Company, the
Company shall have a preferential rights of investments in such new
investment projects.

Neptunus Bio-engineering has confirmed with the Company that it has
complied with the Non-competing Undertakings during the Year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Staff Retirement Scheme

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Company are set out in notes
2.18 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

The former auditor of the Company was Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
(“Crowe Horwath (HK)"). Crowe Horwath (HK) resigned as the auditor of the
Company on 25 November 2016 and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited,
Certified Public Accountants, was appointed as the Company’s auditor on 25
November 2016.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited, who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited
Zhang Feng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
23 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company strives to attain a high standard of corporate governance. The
principles of corporate governance adopted by the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal control transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

(A) Corporate Governance Practices

(B)

(@

The Corporate Governance Code was effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The Company put strong
emphasis on the superiority, steadiness and rationality of corporate
governance. The Board is of the view that the Company has complied
with the requirements set out in Appendix 15 “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the Year.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

During the Year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the “required standard of dealings” and the Company’s
internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.

The Board

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Company with the objective
of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is
responsible for the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance and oversight of
the management. As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the Board during the Year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Xu Yan He

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun
Ms. Yu Lin

Mr. Song Ting Jiu
Mr. Zhao Wen Liang
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung
Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to the
executive Directors, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
The management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company under the guidance of the General Manager.

During the Year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance duties:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Company’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages
16 to 19, with details of diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications concerning the Directors. The term of office of each non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are set out
on page 23 of this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors.

The Board held sixteen board meetings during the Year. The Directors
did not authorize any alternate director to attend any board meetings
during the Year.
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(D) Committees

The Board strives to maintain an excellent corporate governance and
has established committees with written terms of reference setting out
the powers and duties of the committees.

1.  Audit Committee
The Company had established the Audit Committee on 21
August 2005. The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Yu Lin and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka
Yeung. Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

judgments contained therein,

to consider, and to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and to resolve
any issues of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the auditing process
in accordance with applicable accounting standards;

to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations with the external auditors before the auditing
commences, and to ensure co-ordination where more than
one audit firm are involved,;

to review and monitor the integrity of the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements, reports and accounts of
the Company, and to review significant financial reporting
before submission to the
Board, focusing particularly on any changes in accounting
policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant
adjustments resulting from the audit, etc;
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(v) to review the Company’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems;

(vi) to discuss with the management the system of internal
control and to ensure the management has discharged its
duties in maintaining an effective internal control system;

(vii) to review the external auditors' letter to the management
and answer any material queries raised by the auditors to
management in respect of the accounting records, financial
accounts or system of internal control;

(viii) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditors’ letter to the
management;

(ix) to report to the Board on the matters set out herein and,
in particular, the matters required to be performed by the
Audit Committee under the Corporate Governance Code;

(x) to act as the key representative body overseeing the
Company'’s relationship with the external auditors; and

(xi) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary).

During the Year, Audit Committee has reviewed the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements of the Group, who was
of the opinion that these statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the GEM and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made. The Audit Committee held
five meetings during the Year (of which two meetings were held
with the external auditors).
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16
March 2012. Currently the Nomination Committee comprises
one executive Director, Mr. Zhang Feng, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou. Mr. Zhang Feng is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships.

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive

Directors.

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

Directors, in particular the Chairman of the Board and the

General Manager.

The Nomination Committee has adopted the Board Diversity
Policy (the "Policy”) which became effective on 1 September
2013. A summary of this Policy together with the measureable
objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the progress
towards achieving those objectives are outlined below.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, which can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for
identifying qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, with candidates being considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
implementation and reviewing the effectiveness of this Policy.
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During the Year, Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the effectiveness of the Policy and make
recommendations to the Board on the individuals nominated for
directorships. During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 August
2005, comprising one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Yick Wing
Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka Yeung. Mr. Poon Ka Yeung is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i) pursuant to provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Corporate
Governance Code, to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company's policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior
management, which shall include non-monetary benefits,
pension rights and compensation payments (including
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment), and to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the non-executive Directors;
and

(i) to review and approve the remuneration suggestions of
the management according to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration
of the Directors according to their expertise, knowledge and
commitment to the Company with reference to the Company’s
profitability and the prevailing market conditions. The
Remuneration Committee should consult the executive Director
and the General Manager about its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the Senior Management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held three
meetings to discuss the Directors remuneration packages of the
new session of the Board and the remuneration packages for the
new session of the senior management of the Company.
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CEEEEE
(E) Record of number of Board and committee (E) EEERMBZESERRE

meetings and Directors’ attendance REESENHFELEE
During the Year, the number of Board and committee meetings and RAFEAN EFghkMBZEggE X
Directors’ attendance are set out below: YREEFZHFEDEBNT

Annual General Audit Remuneration = Nomination
Directors Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
X REBFAE EEg EREEE FTMEEE REEEE
Zhang Feng (Chairman of the Board) 11 16/16 N/A 3/3 11
R (EEETE) NEA
Xu Yan He 11 15/16 N/A N/A N/A
TRIAN A TEA TEA
Liu Zhan Jun 11 16/16 N/A N/A N/A
25E NEA NEA TNEA
Yu Lin 11 16/16 5/5 N/A N/A
T TiEA TEA
Song Ting Jiu 1Al 16/16 N/A N/A N/A
REA iE A iE A i A
Zhao Wen Liang 1Al 16/16 N/A N/A N/A

iE A i A i A

i=D 24
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 11 16/16 5/5 3/3 11
SoxEE
Poon Ka Yeung 11 16/16 5/5 3/3 11
ARG
Zhang Jian Zhou 11 16/16 N/A N/A 11
E=RlpSs NEA NEA
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(F) Continuous Professional Development for

Directors

During the Year, all members of the Board had attended relevant
professional development such as trainings or seminars according to
their own professionals. The Company also gave advice to Directors
from time to time in respect of training courses. On 14 November
2017, the Company arranged training in respect of “Director’'s Duties
and the Role and Functions of the Board Committee” for Directors and
senior management of the Company. All Directors and relevant senior
management of the Company have attended such training.

(G) Chairman and General Manager

As the leader of the Board, the Chairman is responsible for the approval
and supervision of the overall strategies and policies of the Company,
approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation of the
Company’s performance and oversight of the management. Mr. Zhang
Feng is the current Chairman of the Board. The General Manager
(same role as the post of chief executive pursuant to the Corporate
Governance Code) is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Company. Mr. Xu Yan He is the current General Manager of the
Company. The articles of the association of the Company has set out
the role and powers of the Chairman and General Manager. The roles
of the Chairman and General Manager are separate and are not be
performed by the same individual.

(H) Directors’ Responsibility for Accounts

)

The Directors have confirmed and acknowledged their responsibility for
the preparation of the Company’s financial statements is in compliance
with the relative regulations and applicable accounting standards. The
Board has also warranted that the Company’s financial statements
would be distributed in due course.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Year, approximately RMB1,170,000 (2016: approximately
RMB1,341,000) and approximately RMB425,000 (2016: approximately
RMB319,000) were charged to the Group's income statement for the
external auditor’s audit services and non-audit services respectively.
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(J) Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the internal control system and
risk management of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. To
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of business operations, to
ensure the reliability of financial report, to safeguard the Group’s assets
and the interest of shareholders and to ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, the Company emphasizes the importance of
a sound internal control system. The internal control system and risk
management is designed to mange rather than to eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board regularly and at least annually reviews the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system and risk management through the
Audit Committee, executive management, functional departments,
external advisers and external auditors.

The Company was approved by the Board during the Year to perform
the internal audit function by sharing the resources of the immediate
parent company, Neptunus Bio-engineering. And the internal audit
function is performed by an internal audit team, which comprises the
personnel appointed by the Company and secondment personnel of
Neptunus Bio-engineering. Currently, the Company has drafted the
2018 internal audit plan. During the Year, the management of the
Company has also appointed an external consultant to conduct a
review on the Group’s internal control system and risk management
system. Such external consultant has carried out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and the effectiveness of the
internal control system and risk management of the Group and has
submitted the results of the review and its recommendations and
opinions for consideration to the Audit Committee and the Board. The
review covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance and risk management functions. The Audit Committee
and the Board have discussed the relevant results of the review and
appropriate modifications will be made to the management system of
the Group according to the findings and recommendations therein.
Also during the Year, the Audit Committee and the Board has assessed
whether the Group’s resources in accounting and financial reporting
functions are sufficient, whether the staff obtain sufficient qualification
and experience and whether the trainings for staff and related budget
are sufficient.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of
internal control system with following procedures and reported the
result of the review to the Board:

1. discussing with executive management on areas of risks identified

2. reviewing the risks reported by external consultant of internal
control

3. reviewing external audit plan
reviewing the matters reported by external auditors

5. reviewing the report produced by executive management and
related functional departments to ensure appropriate controls are
in place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are rectified

Based on the information supplied, coupled with its own observations
and with the assistance of the Audit Committee, the Board believes
that, in respect of the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business, the present internal control system and monitoring process
(including sufficiency of the resources in accounting and financial
reporting functions, staff's qualification and experience and trainings
for staff and related budget) are effective and adequate and have
complied with the requirements under the provisions of the code.

(K) Procedures for Handling and Dissemination of

Inside Information

The Board has established the Inside Information Policy for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. The Inside Information
Policy has stipulated the principle and contents of inside information
disclosure, the inside information’s management, security measures,
responsible persons and departments, reporting methods as well as
the disclosure process, etc. The management of the Company must
take all reasonable measures from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement
in relation to the Company. Relevant inside information reporting
persons must promptly notify the Board secretary of the Company of
any matters that might constitute inside information and shall keep
confidentiality of such information. And the Board secretary of the
Company shall ask for instructions from the executive Directors as
soon as reasonably practicable, who will then evaluate whether the
information constitute inside information and if so, to disclose and take
other appropriate prompt action accordingly. In the event that there is
evidence of any material violation of the Inside Information Policy, the
Company will investigate relevant personnel for their responsibilities
and impose certain punishment, so as to avoid the recurrence of such
violation.
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(L) Constitutional Documents (L) BEXH
The constitutional documents of the Company have been published ARAFMBENMHEHNRGEM LA R F]
both on the GEM and the Company's website. At the annual general HEBA e A ZE—+F A -_+=H%
meeting convened on 23 June 2017, certain amendments to the TZBRERRFRE LRBAHARFERE
articles of association of the Company were duly passed. Please refer to TEET - ERFBHEARRB#HA-E
the circular dated on 2 May 2017 for the details of the amendments. —tFRAZHZBEHA . BRZEEE]
Save for such amendments, there has been no significant change in the Gy RMAFEARARNBEX G E£S
constitutional documents of the Company during the Year. K&E -
(M)Company Secretary (M) R B WE

The company secretary supports the Chairman, the Board and Board AREAIMEXHEIR EZTGREFZESE
committees by ensuring good information flow within the Board and g BREZSGADBELSMBEMBARE
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary EFEERREEFGIER ARAWERE
reports to the Board and assists the Board in functioning effectively @Ry UTHhEEea W R AMERM
and efficiently. She also advises the Board on governance matters and B - WATARERFERNEZTGRHE
facilitates the induction and professional development of Directors. R UL HEST I ABREXEEERE -
All Directors of the Company may call upon the company secretary ARA2RBEEABERERA A WERMH
for advice and assistance at any time in respect to their duties and the FHREBENRBFEEENEFLEY
effective operation of the Board and the Board committees. WBVEZ B R KW -
Ms. Lee Mei Yi and Ms. Mu Ling Xia are the joint company secretaries FPERELXTNREZELLTRARAIZEE
of the Company, of which Ms. Lee is the external company secretary NEWE - A - FLTRINERRIWE
and Ms. Mu is a full time employee of the Company. Ms. Mu is also MEXLTRARAZEZHES - RE LR
the vice general manager and financial controller of the Company who BARRZEIBEENMFEEEA  §K
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. Ms. Lee and Ms. NAIEBEAERHE - TRLERELLTR
Mu undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training KEERNEES TR/ N EBEHEE
during the Year. Bl o
The primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Mu Ling RRARNBHEZBHBARREEL L
Xia, the joint company secretary, Board secretary, financial controller BARNBEARWE EFgWE M
and vice general manager of the Company. HFBEANURBIBLE -
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(N) Shareholder’s Rights

0)

(iii)

According to the articles of association of the Company, two or
more shareholders holding more than 10% or more of the shares
with voting rights can sign one or more written requests with
the same format and contents, requesting the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, and stating the topics of the
meeting. After receipt of the aforesaid written request, the Board
shall hold the extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible.
If the Board does not distribute the notice on holding the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
shareholder(s) putting forward such requirement can convene
the meeting on his/their own within four months after the Board
receives such request.

Shareholders of the Company can make enquires to the Board
or the Company in relation to corporate governance or other
matters. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries to
the Company, by email to mix@interlong.com, or by fax to (86)
755 8639 1610 or by mail to Suite 2103, 21st floor, Neptunus
Yinhe Technology Mansion, 1 Keji Middle 3rd Road, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend and give advice
in the general meeting, or appoints proxies to attend general
meetings, and vote for them when they could not attend general
meetings. Under appropriate circumstances, chairman of the
Board, other members of the Board, Chairman of committees
under the Board or representative appointed by them, and
external auditors would attend general meeting of the Company,
and they would answer for the shareholders. They will also
consider or respond to the suggestions made by shareholders.

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting, the shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with detailed contact information to the Company, by
email to mix@interlong.com, or by fax to (86) 755 8639 1610 or by
mail to Suite 2103, 21st floor, Neptunus Yinhe Technology Mansion,
1 Keji Middle 3rd Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC. The request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To: All shareholders

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has exercised its powers
seriously to safeguard the interests of the Company and shareholders,
complied with the principle of good faith, discharged its duties
conscientiously and undertaken tasks in a diligent and proactive manner
in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the relevant Hong Kong
laws, regulations and the articles of association of the Company (the
" Articles of Association”).

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed in detail and
approved the audited financial statements and this report which will be
presented at the annual general meeting. Supervisors of the Company have
reviewed prudently the operation and development plans of the Company,
and carried out strict and effective supervision as regards whether major
decision-making and exact decisions by the management of the Company
are in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles
of Association and safeguard the interests of shareholders. Supervisors
believe that during the Year, the operating results of the Company were
sufficient to reflect its position, and all expenses and costs incurred were
reasonable. The profit sharing scheme was in the long-term interest of
shareholders and the Company. The provision for statutory surplus reserve
and public welfare fund made during the Year has complied with the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association.

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee,
no Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to
have abused his authority or have harmed the interests of shareholders
and employees. To the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee, no
Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to have
violated any applicable laws or regulations, the Articles of Association or the
relevant regulations of China Securities Regulatory Commission. Supervisors
believe that the Directors and other senior management of the Company
have strictly observed their respective duties and acted prudently and
exercised their powers in good faith in the best interest of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is full of confidence in the
future of the Company and would like to take this opportunity to express its
gratitude to all shareholders, Directors and staff for their strong support to
the Supervisory Committee.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Xiong Chu Xiong
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, the PRC
23 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2B EN RS

Q Grant Thornton

B [=]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 162,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 2.8 and 18 to consolidated financial statements.

At the reporting date, the Group held
inventories of approximately RMB146
million net of provisions. In arriving at
the net realisable value of inventories,
estimation and management judgment,
including use of historical aging
statistics, projection of expected volume
and price of future sales of inventories,
were exercised.

We have identified valuation of
inventories as a key matter to our
audit considering the materiality of
the balance and the calculations
are inherently subject to significant
judgement of management.

We evaluated and tested the controls
that management has established to
oversee and keep tracks of inventory
movements.

Among other substantive procedures,
we considered the accuracy of historical
provisions against actual inventory write-
offs.

On a sample basis we selected inventory
items and tested their net realisable
value calculation.

We compared subsequent sales prices
and volumes against those projected in
forecasts.

We were satisfied that the inventory
provision made at reporting date is
justified and could result the carrying
amounts of inventories fairly stated.
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How the matter was addressed RPN ET UM
The Key Audit Matter in our audit BARENEE BEZEE
Intangible assets impairment assessment B EEREN
Refer to note 2.6 and 16 to consolidated financial statements. BRMGETEIRENT2.6 K 16 -
At the reporting date, the Group has ~We obtained valuation reports from RE®RB - BEXEEFE KRMERE E4F
intangible assets with indefinite life, the independent valuer employed BrERTEATHN ERMNBLEEMZ
totalling approximately RMB99.6 by the Company and assessed its BEYEAEREOARE HERSELIGHEER

million including anesthetic drug
production and selling rights and
trade name. These intangible
assets were individually assessed
at year end for impairment loss.
The valuation process employed
significant estimates and
management judgement over the
cash flow forecasts, discount rates,
and benchmark growth rates of
particular drug markets.

We identified impairment of
intangible assets as a key audit
matter due to the materiality of the
balances and the use of estimation
and judgement in accessing the
recoverability of intangible assets.

qualification and reputation.

We reviewed the valuation
methodology, questioned, among
other applicable models, the
valuation model selected and
assumptions made.

We have reconciled input data
to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering
the reasonableness of these budgets.

We have compared prior year
cash flow projections with actual
occurrence to consider accuracy
of management’s prior projections
and if the projections were overly
optimistic.

We are satisfied that the judgement
exercised by management is
rationalised.
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2017 annual report of the
Company, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ M

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ M

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

23 March 2018

Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GERERREMZEHEER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—tF+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+iE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b= AR¥T T ARETF T
REVENUE A 5,6 790,286 759,111
COST OF SALES SHEMA (365,255) (371,905)
GROSS PROFIT EF 425,031 387,206
OTHER REVENUE Hig A 7 8,915 9,102
OTHER NET INCOME HW A RE 7 853 3,674
Selling and distribution expenses HE MR (262,777) (225,786)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (51,523) (50,441)
Other operating expenses Ehig et (46,942) (29,200)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS REER 73,557 94,555
Finance costs B & R 8(a) (3,229) (3,886)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION RRBE AT 2 F 8 70,328 90,669
Income tax expense SR 9(b) (14,899) (17,852)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REEBRF R
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2HEWELEE 55,429 72,817
Profit and total comprehensive LU B B EAE ARF E S F
income for the year attributable to: REHEKEEHE !
Owners of the Company KREEE A 50,257 62,692
Non-controlling interests FEE IR A 5,172 10,125
55,429 72,817
Earnings per share for profit FAESTEERATREEA
attributable to the owners of BERFERRZ
the Company during the year BRER
Basic and diluted EXREE 13 3.00 cents 3.74 cents
AR¥3.005 AR#E3745
The notes on page 64 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated F64BEF 162 MW FBK L FLRE VB MK
financial statements. B —2B7 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—tF+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E—REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FEsE AR¥T T ARETF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB RE&E 14 121,968 140,111
Prepaid lease payments FERHAERE 15 60,879 99,578
Intangible assets mEE 16 111,008 115,158
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEWMZE  BEMEEN
plant and equipment i) 17 4,425 914
Deferred tax assets T IAE E 26(b) 1,719 991
299,999 356,752
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories F& 18 146,468 136,749
Trade and other receivables U AR R K E A FE YRR 19 203,041 210,918
Fixed deposit TEHITE 21 - 4,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 21 350,724 325,195
700,233 676,862
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade and other payables FET AR R R oAt FE A~ R IE 22 176,949 187,124
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 23 30,000 100,000
Entrusted loans from the immediate BEESARZTER
parent company 24 9,000 9,000
Deferred revenue PEIEW S 25 401 401
Current taxation BERFR IR 26(a) 13,220 14,664
229,570 311,189
NET CURRENT ASSETS TRENEEFE 470,663 365,673
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERAEBERE 770,662 722,425
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Deferred revenue PEIEW ZE 25 3,212 4,492
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIEAE 26(b) 17,682 18,394
20,894 22,886
NET ASSETS EEFE 749,768 699,539
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Consolidat

ed Statement of Financial Position
rE ISR R

As at 31 December 2017

M=B—tE+=A=+—AR

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARETF T
EQUITY &=
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BRAREBA
OF THE COMPANY FE(ERERE
Share capital &N 27 167,800 167,800
Reserves T 28 482,049 431,792
TOTAL M5t 649,849 599,592
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ey 99,919 99,947
TOTAL EQUITY EEsm 749,768 699,539
Zhang Feng Xu Yan He
(53 BRIER
Director Director
EZE EF

The notes on page 64 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

aeRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BT —tFt+-_A=t—HILFE

60 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before taxation BREEAT = A 70,328 90,669
Adjustments for: FER
Depreciation e 13,373 15,290
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR SRR IE 1,570 2,353
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 4,150 4,432
Impairment of trade receivables FEUBRFURE 350 311
Impairment of other receivables H b R IERE 402 248
Reverse of impairment loss on trade JRE UK BRSOk (B G 1R 18 [o]
receivables (52) (286)
Reverse of impairment loss on other H A RSB R E R 1B T
receivables (137) (74)
Reversal of overprovision of RPRE N BB R R R T
retirement benefits - (1,000)
Finance costs W58 A 3,229 3,886
Interest income FEUTA (3,603) (2,594)
Interest income from principal RAETFZR B A
protected deposits (1,300) -
Subsidy income released from ER AR
deferred revenue EOEEEL N (1,280) (753)
Write down of inventories WoRF & 12,460 4,764
Reversal of write down of inventories FERURED (307) (1,860)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment REREE 106 221
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKE AR AEE = (1,594)
Gain on disposal of & A H B E B
available-for-sales investment - (50)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease L E TR ERIBA W = (1,030) =
payments
98,259 113,963



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
= N =

FEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—+EI—A=+—BILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESEE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEm,/ md (21,872) 15,933
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JRE UK R S e EL At FE MR IR A (A 0)
other receivables 7,349 (12,718)
Decrease in trade and other payables JRE AT BIR 3% R EL A JE A< R TE R (10,175) (15,183)
(24,698) (11,968)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS BEEERS 73,561 101,995
Income tax paid — PRC EAERHR — (17,778) (19,141)
CASH GENERATED FROM KETHELRS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 55,783 82,854
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME  BERRENLES
plant and equipment (12,526) (914)
Payment for purchase of property, BEME - BEREEAONR
plant and equipment (12,148) (23,524)
Payment for expenditure of EBPEERMWER
intangible assets = (121)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEKEED
plant and equipment FriSs0E 26,415 2,670
Placement of principal protected deposits FRURATF R (170,000) =
Receipts from principal protected deposits R ANELTFZREY UL TR 170,000 =
Interest received B FE 4,903 2,594
Decrease in pledged deposits B RETOR D - 3,400
Decrease in fixed deposits B RCR L 4,000 13,608
Proceeds from disposal of & Al B IR E 1S 5RIE
available-for-sales investments - 350
Net cash flow from HE—FEREATEEA
disposal of a subsidiary e me s — 41,152
Proceeds from disposal of S TR E IR
prepaid lease payments P 500E 37,531 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEELBREFE 48,175 SOWAIS
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

)\\/ N Eﬁi;ﬁéi

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBETFTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (150,000) -
Proceeds from new bank loans FILIRTTE RS IA 80,000 -
Repayment of financial assistance Eve{EEI I =YNS!
to a fellow subsidiary B & B = (70,389)
Interest paid BRFE (3.229) (3,886)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests I SRR R M R O IR B, (5,200) (5,200)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES E&5EEffRBR&FHE (78,429) (79,475)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERRESEYEMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,529 42,594
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BRERRSZED 325,195 282,601
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—A=+—8H®
AT 31 DECEMBER RERBESZEY 350,724 325,195
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH R+=—A=+—8%
EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER RERBSZEYIN
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIRS 350,724 325,195
The notes on page 64 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated F64HEEF 162 MM TR LLF4RE M mE

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SERBER

As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—tF+=A=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTEEAEL
(Accumulated
Statutory |osses)/ Non-
Share Share  reserve Capital  Retained controlling
capital  premium fund reserve  eamings  Sub-total interests Total
(B8
RE  RORE REiEE  EAEE  REEA N OFERER  SER
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARSI ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note27) ~ (Note28a)  (Note 28c)  (Note 28h)
(Mit2r)  (Wik2sa)  (Mirso)  (Mstash)
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-~E-R-8 167,800 554,844 38,481 (188,494) (35731) 536,900 95,022 631922
Change in equity for 2016 “E-REERED
Profit and total comprehensive RERRNRRANALE
income for the year - - - - 62,692 62,692 10,125 72817
Dividend paid from a subsidary TR F R E R
o non-controlling interests HBRERE - - - - - - (5200 (5200
Transfer to other reserves ERTEMREE - - 5,268 - (5,268) - - -
- - 5,268 - (5,268) - (5,200) (5,200)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-A"E+-A=1-A 167,800 554,844 43749 (188,494) 21,693 599,592 99,947 699,539
At 1 January 2017 RZE-+5-A-A 167,800 554,844 43749 (188,494) 21,693 599,592 99,947 699,539
Change in equity for 2017 “E-LFEESD
Profit and total comprehensive FEERHIRE A A EE
income for the year - - - - 50,257 50,257 5112 55,429
Dividend paid from a subsiciary ABE Y i
to non-controlling interests KBLARE - - - - - - (5,200) (5,200)
Transfer to other reserves ERTHMRE - - 4,870 - (4,870 - = =
- - 4,870 - (4,870) - (5,200) (5,200)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t§+-A=1-H 167,800 554,844 48619 (188,494) 67,080 649,849 99,919 749,768
The notes on page 64 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated F64BEF 162 BN EBA I FLE MISHRE
financial statements. B—E5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BT —tFt+-_A=t—HILFE

General Information

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The address of its
registered office is 1/F, Block 1, Research Building, Neptunus Technical
Center, Langshan 2nd R.N. Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC and, its principal place of business is PRC. The
Company'’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

The Group is controlled by Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering
Company Limited (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”), a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in the PRC and its shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The ultimate parent company
of the Group is Shenzhen Neptunus Holding Group Limited (former
named as Shenzhen Yinhetong Investment Company Limited), a
company incorporated in the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) include the development, production and sales of medicines,
the research and development of modern biological technology
business, the purchase and sales of medicines, healthcare food
products and the research and development of in vitro diagnostic
reagents. The Group'’s operations are based in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 were approved for issue by the board of directors on 23 March
2018.

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
These annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
("GEM Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB™) which is also the functional currency of the consolidated
entities. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
= == >

T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESHBE(E)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 22 HREEE(E)

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary REBRGEMBEREPRE BN
in the consolidated financial statements from the date it gains BRRBEAEERSGZFE BHE
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the EAEETHENZWNB AR ZBH
subsidiary. Ez Wk FAXE -
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses SERzRS  RBELREERNAGEME
on transactions between group companies are eliminated in REMEEZEMNARERENLE
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised B ONREGEH BRI 2HEE
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, He SEMEEHENREREBEER
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the FAERED  HEEETHAEEM
Group's perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements EEITRE R o M8 AR %R
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure EPFEHRSBE THEURRKRER
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. KEERANGTBE -5 -
Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not FEIEAR AR R RO M B A Al i R A I
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect MARREENMERGENED - M
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the REETERILERZZERZOFERA
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a W AR REIMEFK - B RS E 4
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests NZERaAENEeBEERN
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business SHEET - REEEBEHME - &K
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling SEERRATEIFERERD
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the B AR A BEEFERFE
subsidiary's net identifiable assets. I FEERR A o
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated IEIER RN R A M B R AR ER
statement of financial position within equity, separately from 2% BB RN AEE AFERRE
the equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non- oo NN BIZEE NN IEITREZ
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented Re Bam R HE MR E WS R A LB
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and Mk B8 R AFE IR ER AR
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or AEEAZHNEZEKERES R
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non- ] o
controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result REERNE QRN EREEEEE
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, REREESE JNEEERS I
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling HRE RERFE B EHIRER &I
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in % 4 2 1 3 BB LA e R FE R A 25 Y 2
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and B BEEEVEELAE  NER

no gain or loss is recognised. RAE(AEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amounts
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Company had
directly disposed of the related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2. Sig
23

nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combination (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value on the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
bargain purchase gain.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss
when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Land held for own use under finance leases and buildings
thereon, buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases, and other
items of plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised
borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

Buildings held under leasing agreements are depreciated over
their expected useful lives of 50 years or over the term of lease, if
shorter.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes, are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation on other assets is provided to write off the cost less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Plant and machinery 5to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements 5 to 30 years or over the

remaining term of
the lease, if shorter

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. Any
revaluation surplus remaining in equity is transferred to retained
earnings on the disposal of land and building.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when they are
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Leasehold land and land use rights

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantively all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group.
Specially, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over the
term of the right of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived by the
Group from use of the land.

During the construction period, the amortisation charges provided for
prepaid lease payments are capitalised in construction-in-progress.

Intangible assets and research and development activities
Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences when the
intangible assets are available for use. The following useful lives
are applied:

Computer software
Trademarks

5to 10 years
10 years
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2. Sig
2.6

72 SHENZHE

nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets and research and development activities
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are tested
for impairment as described below in note 2.17.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit
or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to
development activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sales;

(i)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

(i) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sales;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
The costs of development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above recognition criteria
are recognised as intangible assets. They are subject to the same
subsequent measurement method as acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets and research and development activities
(Continued)

Other intangible assets arising from business combinations
Anesthetic drug production and selling right, trade name,
customer list and selling licenses acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade name
has indefinite useful life and carried at cost less impairment losses.
The useful life of the anesthetic drug production and selling right
and trade name are considered by the management of the Group
as indefinite because the anesthetic drug production and selling
right, and trade name is expected to contribute to the Group's
net cash inflows indefinitely. The customer list and selling licenses
has a finite useful life of 10 years and 5 years respectively and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life.

Financial assets
The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets are set out
below.

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.
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2. EERETEEE)
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.7 Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Obijective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and
recognised as follows:

i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal
is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Financial assets carried at cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amounts of the financial assets and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. The
amount of the impairment losses is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the impairment occurs and not
reversed in subsequent periods.

ire B ER R T &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—tF+_A=+—HILFE

2. FEETHXR
2.7 eREEH)
fﬂ%?zﬁﬁﬂ;
HEHRREMZEERE
T2 RERREEE -

(&)

AR AT A X

) KEBEEANEZ THEE

i 75 %5 B 8 YR BUR 1R S5 R AN G
fR 2 B R W R L R E R
B ARERBRRZEREER
EEAENERERMNEZ(AIER
BRBAEZERANR)FEZ
BEARKRERE(FEERR
EEZAREEBR)REZE
AT E - REBRRRERER
BaRRPHER

WEERREBESERD M
B BRI B E B R E R

BEZEMBE  NFREOBE
MR MERE - R ERE
R ITREREREEREE

BRI R E L REERT 2
BESHRAN - B S RBENR B O EAE
HREERERTHER -

i)  KEERIEZ 2 HEE
RARKATN R EREEM S -
RMEBE SRREBEE IR
EEEMGHRARESREBRFAE
TREEZRITMS DR EAIE

ZBEZEZBE - REBER
WEEE RN B SER - NME

REIR A RO -

R EREERENRMRGEBERAT  20174FHK 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESHBE(E&)
2.7 Financial assets (Continued) 27 SWMEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEEZBE (F)
Impairment losses on financial assets other than trade receivables SRMEE (WM TNBIREHK AR &
that are stated at amortised cost, are written off against the WERF) BB EhEEERABEE
corresponding assets directly. Where the recovery of trade Widy o BERERWRF LR AEAIAEL
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote, the impairment FETBEURE - RIJE FE YR IE R BR 2R
losses for doubtful receivables are recorded using an allowance BEEBTARER &4XKEHEEE
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade WER Rz AT B M iR K - B3R =1
receivables is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is ARE BN EEBERIE SRR
written off against trade receivables directly and any amounts Wiss - 308 [ Bt 27 e WK IB RS AR
held in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are BR2EMESRE - LR AREBERZS
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged FINEEZ D - AR BEER B -
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance BERHMOEHREBWEILRED
account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent Mg £  VEETERERER -

recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interim financial reporting and impairment I ERT S #R & R BB

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of BEEBBERXIMERAF GEME
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required FEmAA AEEREREEGE
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with Hong ZA(TEBGTER ] F3495F H
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) 34, Interim Financial HEBENRTE R BRFENE S
Reporting, in respect of first six months of the financial year. &l AR R TS SRS - AP HERAE R
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same B AKBEFRUETBFELERE (R
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at MEE2.7) Fris eV AR ER & - &
the end of the financial year (see note 2.7). R EIREE o

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value JFE AT R R % L A PR WK IE T A 2P HR
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest TEER  HEFRERNED AR
method, less allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debis, AR R R R E BB RES
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to B WMZERURIBAG THREA
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of T/ % BB R & 7] B E 48 SRER Sk
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables HTBRFEAM T REERIBRN - &£
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses for BB T - FEUGRIA TH IR A AN R R 3
doubtful debts (see note 2.7). OREEERE (RMHT2.7) 518 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion
and applicable selling expenses.

Cost is determined using the weighted average basis, and in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprise
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. It excludes borrowing costs.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amounts of any write down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write down or
loss occurs. The amounts of any reversal of any write down
of inventories are recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

2. Sig
2.10

nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include entrusted loan from the
immediate holding company, interest-bearing bank borrowings
and trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2.19).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;, any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value

2. FESEHE(E)
210 e@ERE

AEEZERMABRTIZERERER
RARFER - HERITEEREN
BRR S E M S 5RIR o

ERABEASERASHITIASGY
X EVRT KT B TSR » PR BRI S48
M HERBAKRE 2 @5 BEM
fEER AR (RMEE2.19) ©

SBAGRNAEHABAERRGS
S SR R AR L TERR -

W—RREBEBBERBRERAZ
BEATRGREMRZ S —HERR
R FBRBABEREERNER > Z
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HAREL NBEAXNAE  BRIM
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PR SR R B e 7R
FE AT R SR K B At JE A5 BRIB V) 4R X F

and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective BEMER - HEREAERR R ERE
interest method. HARKAGTE -
2.11 Financial guarantees issued 211 ERHZHHER

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

78 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED

FMBERENDEER —RHEBBHA
RERBES TR ZGREESBE
B BEA(RERA) BEMEE
RIE - UHERBARLMMS R 218
P

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1

2.12

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
“trade and other payables”. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount, i.e., the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon, at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease (see note 2.4). For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Sig
2.12

2.13

2.14

nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

ii)  Operating lease charges as the lessee
Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.

iii)  Leasehold land for own use
Interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is recognised
at the amount of consideration of shares issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of goods, net of rebates and discounts.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue are recognised upon transfer of the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually taken as
the time when the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales tax and is after deduction of any trade discount.

Research and development services income
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method.

Sales management services to pharmaceutical products
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the
services is rendered.

2.16 Government subsidies

Subsidies from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the subsidies will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government subsidies are deferred and recognised in profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
the subsidies are intended to compensate. Government subsidies
relating to the purchase of assets are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Government subsidies relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESHBE(E)
2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets 217 ke BEERE

Other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, prepaid EMEREE WX - BEMERE -
lease payments and the Company’s interests in subsidiaries are TENEERERARDTRWE R FH
subject to impairment testing. Tz BEITRERR o
Other intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those not H 45 2 & B QR AR PR E O] A R HA SR
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, BARTAFER - BT a R R
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they are impaired. BEDR - HEKDEFETRER
All other assets are tested for impairment whenever there are A MEEMEERNEDRBEREZE
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable. WE R EREITRE R -
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately WEEEDIEEERAEBRBE A
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds OREEE2EZ DRNBRRH
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of oAl eEARMTIN 2 AFE
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal, BHERAEFEBAEERSETHE -
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future TEEAEER G ARKESRE
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre- FRERAMRATITIREITIREZEIRE - I
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time REBRETSHEEREEREHRE
value of money and the risk specific to the asset. ERFARRZ S -
For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does M EREMNS  WAEERESNR
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from ZEERTMBLINEMEE - A
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the WE B BYELARESRALN
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows independently BRLEEEG(NReELEM)E
(i.e., a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are TE o Bt - B0 EE B BT R E A
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash- o SEBHARBSEEBMAR -

generating unit level.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units are MRS EEBUBERORAEBEEL
charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating units, except PIREeELESMNEENR - HE
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below ENREEL I ISREERE/EMNA
its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if B R S A A Bk 5 B E (WAl &
determinable. E) e

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change MARETEETWE &5 2 G5
in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount WEMNEEE  BEEEB T NAE
and only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not B BRBENSBANERNTHER
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net BAE - WEHRITESH 2 BREE ©

of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to central
pension scheme

The Group participates in the central pension scheme (the
“CPS") operated by the local government authority for all of its
employees in PRC. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their covered payroll to the CPS to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
CPS is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the CPS.
Contributions under the CPS are recognised in profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and contributions
to central pension scheme are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of: when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises costs for any related restructuring.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the
acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sales. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sales are being
undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sales are complete.
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2. Sig
2.20

2.21

84 SHENZHE

nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the
asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if,
and only if:

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in net if, and only if:

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
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2. Sig
2.21

2.22

2.23

nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.23 Related parties (Continued)
the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions
applies:

(b)

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2017:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
included in Annual Entities
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and amended
HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results and financial
position for the current and prior periods have been prepared and
presented.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosure that enable
users of consolidated financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes. A reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances of liabilities arising from financing
activities is set out in note 31. Consistent with the transition provisions
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in
note 31, the application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

ire B ER R MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

Q’E—EJJ ( ..a)
EEMEMRERZERBBREEL

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments’
Leases?

Insurance Contract*

Classification and Measurement of Share-
Based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Long-term interest in associates and joint
ventures?

As part of the annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property’
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?
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3. Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
3 Effective date not yet determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted
in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period beginning on or
after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new
and amended HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group's
accounting policies is provided below. Other new and amended HKFRSs
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. It makes major changes to the previous guidance on
the classification and measurement of financial assets and introduces
an “expected credit loss” model for the impairment of financial assets.

HKFRS 9 also contains new requirements on the application of hedge
accounting. The new requirements look to align hedge accounting
more closely with entities’ risk management activities by increasing
the eligibility of both hedged items and hedging instruments and
introducing a more principles-based approach to assessing hedge
effectiveness.

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group's financial assets measured at amortised costs and other items
that subject to the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model was to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by the
Group as at 1 January, 2018 would be increased as compared to the
accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to
expected credit losses provision on trade and other receivables. Such
further impairment recognised under expected credit loss model would
reduce the opening retained earnings and increase the deferred tax
assets at 1 January, 2018.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 and the related clarification to HKFRS 15 (hereinafter referred
to as “HKFRS 15") presents new requirements for the recognition
of revenue, replacing HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts”, and several revenue-related Interpretations. HKFRS 15
establishes a single comprehensive model that applies to contracts with
customers and two approaches to recognising revenue; at a point in
time or overtime. The model features a contract-based five-step analysis
of transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to be affected:

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note 2.15.
Currently, revenue arising from provision of services is recognised over
time, whereas revenue from sale of goods is generally recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when customer obtains control
of the promised good or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised good or service is regarded
as being transferred over time:

(i)  when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the entity
performs;

(i) when the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced;

(i) when the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any of
these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that good or service at a single point in time, being
when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is
only one of the indicators that will be considered in determining when
transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not likely to
have significant impact on how it recognise revenue from sale of goods
and service income.

The directors do not consider that the application of HKFRS 15 will
likely to have significant financial impact on the Group’s financial
performance and financial position for the current and prior periods.
However, the expected changes in accounting policies as described
above could have a material impact on the Group's financial results
from 2018 onwards.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”
HKFRS 16 “Leases” will replace HKAS 17 and three related
Interpretations.

As disclosed in note 2.12, currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the lease.
The Group enters into leases as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance
leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease, the
lessee will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee would recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to
short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and
to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases of land and buildings which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead
to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing
of the expense recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the lease.

As disclosed in note 35b, as at 31 December 2017, the Group's future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to approximately RMB4,042,000 for land and buildings, the
majority of which is payable either between 1 and 5 years after the
reporting date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities
arising from operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16,
after taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between now and
the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The standard offers different transition options and
practical expedients, including the practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen, the Group will
apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts
that are entered into on or after the date of initial application. If the
practical expedient is not chosen, the Group will need to reassess all
of its decisions about which existing contracts are, or contain, leases,
using the new definition. Depending on whether the Group elects
to adopt HKFRS 16 retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective
method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the Group may or
may not need to restate comparative information for any changes in
accounting resulting from the reassessment.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4. BEEETEFTRAE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on R RAHEREEELBREEMEAE(E

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future RERBRET  YREFHELEEZ

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. ) R TTRIS -

4.1 Estimation uncertainty 41 fEFHTRERZE
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning AR BB AR AT RERE - RIE
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by HEZ  BltGHZet b HgE D
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates HEBERERER - T Xt AA
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material HT-UBFERNCEERBEZE
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within EEEKREAFHEZEKNAERER
the next financial year are discussed below: EHPACESE
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid W BERLZERENEESEL
lease payments and deposits for acquisition of land and TEURBE LM ¥ BERK
property, plant and equipment B2
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value BEMNAJRESEEEAFERLE
less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, BRAMEREBENRSE - EME
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present EREBER - DHEGARKRRE DRI
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market REHRKEE EANFNXRT
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific RRBEMSFEOEEHERZE
to the asset, which requires significant judgement relating to EREZRBEZRAFTNE  XFH
the level of revenue and the amount of operating costs. The EU U AKE ML & A E I E R
Group uses all readily available information in determining an B - ARBENAABREOER LA
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable BRI EEAENGEE  BREGEM
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable ] 3245 B B AR DA B SO AT A8 48 P A Y
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating costs. T - A ENEPAREEEEN
Changes in these estimates could have a significant impact on FRHEEESANTE  UAIEEH
the carrying amounts of the assets and could result in additional FER R EAR RT IR R SRR E 1R R SO
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future periods. EIEFHERARERK - RERAK
The carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment and Mm% - BE RRERIENEERIER
prepaid lease payments and deposit for acquisition of property, HEMBYE BEERREORS
plant and equipments as at the end of the reporting period D RIH AR 121,968,000 T( =&
are approximately RMB121,968,000 (2016: approximately —"F AR 140,111,0007T)
RMB140,111,000), RMB60,879,000 (2016: approximately AR #60,879,000 C( =ZF — N F :
RMB99,578,000) and RMB4,425,000 (2016: approximately # N R #99,578,000T ) & AR #
RMB914,000) respectively. 4,425,000 C(ZZE—RF : HARE

914,0007T) °
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

41

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts resulting from the inability of customers and other debtors
to make the required payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the aging of the receivable balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of
the customers and debtors were to deteriorate, actual impairment
losses would be higher than estimated. The carrying amounts
of trade and bill receivables and other receivables as at the end
of the reporting period are approximately RMB172,696,000
(2016: approximately RMB176,021,000), net of allowance
from impairment loss of approximately RMB2,130,000 (2016:
approximately RMB2,282,000) and RMB3,728,000 (2016:
approximately RMB5,093,000) respectively.

Write down of inventories

The Group determines the write down for obsolescence of
inventories. Those estimates are made with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
the goods and management experience and judgement. Based
on this review, a write down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market conditions, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in the estimation. The
carrying amounts of inventories as at the end of the reporting
period is approximately RMB146,468,000 (2016: approximately
RMB136,749,000).

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual test on whether there has been
impairment of intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.6. The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rate, and other assumptions underlying
the value in use calculations. The carrying amounts of intangible
assets as at the end of reporting period is approximately
RMB111,008,000 (2016: approximately RMB115,158,000).
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BIEEERE
RIEHRMI 2. 6 NEFTEEK - A5&E
BEHENEER T RBEETRR -
AEKNRESELEEMNSERES
%E@% I EERE c RATEAERE
REBEYHRRESDEMELDN
ﬁﬁ&?“ BRELATERIR R » DA R
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ# FAEEN R ER B
c B EENRERBARNEARELD
AR¥111,008,00070 (=& — /<4 -
#HANE®115,158,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=) + 23

T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4. EERSTHEETRHE (&)
(Continued)
4.1 Estimation uncertainty (Continued) 4.1 HEFERERE (FE)
Income taxes FrEH

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits
can be utilised, management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities as at the end of the reporting period are approximately
RMB1,719,000 (2016: approximately RMB991,000) and
RMB17,682,000 (2016: approximately RMB18,394,000) respectively.

BEMSHBEIREETISHR
REMEEIBIEHNFE - REEFIE
FHER SRR B R E WA REIIE
BE - AEBESRZERZINONBE
BYETE BIEHE - ART R IEEIABIA
FrE2e - RANRGEERAINEE
FEBOBERABRLERIBEE - AR
ELRENIAE E QR WA ER
Tt K B B EHE S R A B IS o e F
R EREMFGTEER ©
RAR AT B 2R B ER B s A R DA R e
EFHIBEE  AeRRB/INVELTH
BEE -MREWRPR BEEFHBEEE
MELERESENEREOIESNHAR
#1,719,000 T(ZZ—RF : HAR
#991,00070) & AR® 17,682,000
ZE—RF 9 AR 18,394,000
TT) °

4.2 Critical accounting judgements 4.2 EESTHHE
Applying the Group’s accounting policies FEAEEEETHE

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and liabilities,
the Group makes assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. These estimates involve assumptions about such items as
cash flows and discount rates used. The Group's estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience and expectations
of future events and are reviewed periodically. In addition to

HEETAEMEEMA BNRESER -
AR SR [E B TR E HO R RSB 7 2 3R
RZFEEMBENTZEFELTER -
ZELE R AP ANRESRER
AR EZIEAMRKR - AREREBE
R BR AN SRR F RO TRRTE H A ET AT
Ra% - WEHIER © BREARREHFAOR

assumptions and estimations of future events, judgements are also RAERTIN - AEERASFBURRE
made during the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. BEEEL A -
Research and development activities T B

Careful judgment by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and may be subject to
future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgments
are based on the best information available at each reporting
date. In addition, all internal activities related to the research
and development of new software, products or know-how are
continuously monitored by the Group’s management.
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Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and services
provided (net of value-added tax and after allowances for returns and
trade discounts).

ire B ER R MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

5. WA

WARBEEEmAREHIRFNERSE (0
BIBER MEEME SITHEE) -

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFT

Manufacturing and selling of medicines 4 Z % 7, 427,022 430,856
Sales and distribution of medicines SHE R IH % R AR *

and healthcare products* 363,264 328,066

Research and development T2 AR TS U A
services income - 189
790,286 759,111

* For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue from sales
and distribution of medicines and healthcare products included
the revenue from sales management services of pharmaceutical
products of approximately RMB11,215,000.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed in
note 36(b) to these consolidated financial statements.

Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group's executive directors for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

(i)  Manufacturing and selling of medicines;
(i)  Sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products; and

(iii)  Provision of research and development services of modern
biological technology.

Currently, all the Group's activities above are carried out in the PRC. No
reportable operating segment has been aggregated.

The first segment derives its revenue from the manufacturing and sales
of medicines.
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iR e SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued)

The second segment derives its revenue from sales and distribution of
medicines and healthcare products and providing sales management
services of pharmaceutical products.

The third segment derives its revenue from the provision of research &
development services.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s executive
directors monitor the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current
assets with the exception of deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities
include all current and non-current liabilities with the exception of
current taxation and deferred tax liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segments profit is “adjusted
EBITDA”, that is “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisaiton”, where “interest” is regarded as
including investment income and “depreciation and amortisation”
is regarded as including impairment losses on non-current assets. To
arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ fees and auditor’s remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, the executive directors are provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment loss, reverse of impairment loss on
trade and other receivables, write down of inventories, reverse of
write down of inventories, reversal of overprovision of retirement
benefits and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segment revenue are priced
with reference to prices charged to external parties for similar
orders.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. DE=FR (F&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) DEPXE BERERB(H)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as REE—_T—tFR_FT—RF+=

A=1T—RLFEZERDENFH
DEHRAMAEENTEERHEER
REBERED B ZERFNTX

provided to the Group’s executive directors for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is set out below:

Sales and distribution
Manufacturing and of medicines and Research and
selling of medicines healthcare products development services Total
LENHERER HERAHERRRER HR R faz
For the year ended 31 December 217 2016 217 2016 217 2016 2017 2016
BEtZR=t-ALEE 2t CEF ZE-tF CEE ZE-tF R F IE-tE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETm  ARETT AREFR  ARETR
Segment revenue ABRA
Revenue from external customers — SREFIA 427,022 430,856 363,264 328,066 - 189 790,286 759,111
Inter-segment revenue AHERA 35,357 28,929 - - - - 35,357 28929
Reportable segment revenue ~ WERHRAHHA 4623719 459,785 363266 328,066 - 189 825683 788,040
Reportable segment profit/(loss) TR HER/ (HE)

(adjusted EBITDA) (S35 EBITDA) 42,654 67911 47,504 38262 (4,368) (913) 85,790 105,260
Interest income from bank deposits ~ $RATTEEUHIBAA 2,767 2403 377 156 459 35 3,603 2,504
Interest income from principal WX’” FHEHA

protected deposits 1,300 - - - - - 1,300 =
Interest expenses flgRx (3.229) (3,750) - = - (136) (3.229) (3,886)
Depreciation and amorisation: HERES

- property, plant and equipment %1% FE Rk (12,195) (11,857) (91 (1,170) (1,087) (2263) (13,373) (15,290)

- prepaid lease payments ~-BHHEHE (1,570) (1570) - 5 - = (1,570) (1,570)

- intangible assets -EWEE (3.950) (4.231) (200) (201) - = (4,150) (443))
Write down of inventories HAFE (10,814) 2,179 (1,646) (2,585) - - (12,460) (4.764)
Reversal of write down of inventories  FEAIRAR 85 = m 1,860 - = 307 1,860
Impairment of: i

- trade receivables ~ M (350) 73) - (238) - - (350) (311)

- other receivables ~Eft U {) (191) - (57) (401) - (402) (248)
Reverse of impairment loss on: AEEEER

- trade receivables — R 3 9 49 194 - - 5 286

- other receivables - BftpelsiE 129 67 8 7 - - 137 74
Reversal of overprovision RIVER

of refiremen benefit e - - - 1,000 - - - 1,000
Income tax expense FrgREx (2,975) 1130 (12,024) (9.834) 100 (881) (14899 (1785
Reportable segment assets IRRANEE 4733 864361 183303 161322 184448 169,100 1102484  1,194783
Additions to non-current assets FRBAERE

(other than financial instrument (MefEeRIa

and deferred tax assets) RERHEEE) 3083 2978 3419 269 69 5 34,311 3,252
Reportable segment liabilities ~ WEHAHAE 249,704 371,985 60,183 76,275 14,888 16,268 324,175 464,528

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer with

whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. D2 (1)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or (b) TEHFHMBUKA B - EEREBRE
loss, assets and liabilities Y ¥ BR
2017 2016
—E—+tH —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue BIEE RPN 825,643 788,040
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 EB R A 55 (35,357) (28,929)
Consolidated revenue el A 790,286 759,111
Profit A
Reportable segment profit A ¥ 5> HB 5 A 85,790 105,260
(Elimination)/Reversal of 7 EBREEF (GE8E) BB
inter-segment profit (631) 84
Reportable segment profit derived REAREEINRE S H A B
from the Group'’s external customers paN=iingl 85,159 105,344
Other revenue and other net income EMUA R E MR A FRE 9,768 12,776
Depreciation and amortisation s s (19,093) (21,292)
Finance costs B8 A (3,229) (3,886)
Unallocated head office and AOMBRI R ERT
corporate expense (2,277) (2,273)
Consolidated profit before taxation MR ATAR A Y ) 70,328 90,669
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6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. DEP2HR (&)
(b) ARHSHBA - BR BEERES

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

HYHRR ()

2017 2016
—E—+iF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR D IEE 1,102,484 1,194,783
Elimination of inter-segment receivables %50l FE U R B 1K £ (103,971) (162,160)
998,513 1,032,623
Deferred tax assets FEERIBEE 1,719 991
Consolidated total assets REEEERE 1,000,232 1,033,614
Liabilities =0
Reportable segment liabilities Ao IaE 324,775 464,528
Elimination of inter-segment payables 53 B FE A SR IE 8 (105,213) (163,511)
219,562 301,017
Current taxation BIHEATH IR 13,220 14,664
Deferred tax liabilities FLERIRE 17,682 18,394
Consolidated total liabilities e BEERs 250,464 334,075
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BE—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. DEFE2H (&)
(c) Revenue from major products and services () REFEERERBHEHRA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major T REAREEFZEEMMRBHK
products and services: ADHT
2017 2016
—=—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Medicines and healthcare products 22 AR G 779,071 758,922
Research and development services e RS - 189
Sales management services of EmiHEERE 11,215 -
pharmaceutical products AR 7%
790,286 759,111
(d) Geographic Information (d) tEER
The Group's revenue and results from operations mainly derived AEBNRANRKEEETTREF
from activities in the PRC. The principal assets of the Group were WEREH - RER REESHE
located in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by BEEMPTBE - Bt SEEE
geographical segment is provided. BOEBDHT
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Other Revenue and Other Net Income

7. HEMWAREMWAFEE

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Other revenue HArA
Interest income from bank deposits RITTF K BHA 3,603 2,594
Interest income from principal RAFRIFFFEUA
protected deposits 1,300 -
Government subsidies: ERFHEEh -
— released from deferred revenue — B AR 1,280 753
— directly recognised in profit or loss —EREETABEZE 1,191 3,266
Others Efth 511 845
Gain on disposal of available-for-sales & Al H &1 E MUk S
investment - 50
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary o — TR A R M ik - 1,594
Gain on disposal of prepaid HEFEMRERIEM K S
lease payments 1,030 =
8,915 9,102
Other net income HiW AR5
Reverse of impairment loss on JRE S B ORK (B S R ¢ [E]
trade receivables 52 286
Reverse of impairment loss on Hth FE W R IR E s 1B T
other receivables 137 74
Reversal of overprovision of retirement  3E/R4EFIFBRE B &7 )
benefit - 1,000
Reversal of write down of inventories 77 &R [l 307 1,860
Net foreign exchange gains b i e 3 58 77 4
Others Efth 280 450
853 3,674
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BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

8. Profit Before Taxation
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

8.

BR A& A

BRI M TS ER AT B8

2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT
(a) Finance costs (a) HKEHR
Interest on bank loans IRITEREFE 3,229 3,622
Interest on financial assistance HESARNBEEPHFE
from the immediate
parent company - 264
Total interest expense on WIEFE BB IR A TES| R
financial liabilities not at fair ERIBENT SR AR
value through profit or loss 3,229 3,886
(b) Staff costs (including (b) EIRK(EBEESHS)*
directors’ emoluments)*
Contributions to defined TR FGRIRET BB
contribution retirement plans 12,985 12,706
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMEN 58,526 61,261
71,511 73,967
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8. Profit Before Taxation (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

ire B ER R MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_Z—tF+-A=1T—RHILFE

BRB A=A (4)
B BATRE R SR A TR IR - (#)

(Continued)
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
(c) Other items () HfEAE
Amortisation: By
— prepaid lease payments —FaREERIE
— charged to consolidated —FT ARG BE
statement of profit or loss MEAMZERER
and other comprehensive
income 1,570 1,570
— transfer to —EHEERTRE
construction-in-progress 628 783
2,198 2,353
—intangible assets* — I EE* 4,150 4,432
Depreciation: e
— assets held for own —BEEERHIEER
use under leases WEE 3,549 3,725
— other assets —HMEE 9,824 11,565
Impairment of: RE :
— trade receivables* — FEYCERTR * 350 311
— other receivables* — H e YR IE * 402 248
Write down of inventories* MoRAF & * 12,460 4,764
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BRE RERERNERE*
plant and equipment* 106 221
Auditor’s remuneration ZEED N & 1,170 1,341
Auditor’s non-audit services A GIE ==
remuneration 425 319
Operating lease charges: EMERY
minimum lease payment REBEEMNK 8,548 8,897
Cost of inventories FERA 355,062 365,019
Research and development costs* &R * 29,386 18,148

* These amounts are included in “Other operating expenses” presented
on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

9. Income Tax Expense
(@ Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

9. FREHIRIX

(a)

RizE Ra MEM KRR H S

and other comprehensive income represents: B IE
2017 2016
—=—tfF —ZE—RF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
k=3 AR®ETT ARBFT
Current taxation B IR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") "FEIMEMTSH ([{BEFTEH]) 16,339 18,747
Over provision for PRC RBTFERBECEMEHN
EIT in respect of prior years TREER = (635)
Deferred tax ELEHIE
Origination and reversal of R ETEMOTAE R
temporary differences 26(b) (1,440) (260)
14,899 17,852

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the Group
had no assessable profits to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
(2016: Nil).

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, two subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC are qualified as high technology enterprise.
In accordance with the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC, these subsidiaries are subject to the PRC EIT at a
preferential rate of 15%.

The Company and other PRC subsidiaries are subject to the
PRC EIT at a rate of 25% (2016: 25%) for the year ended 31
December 2017.

AR H I EA R E NG
JERBE A - BN ANFE QA EF 2
BEREMNERBE(ZS—RE:F)-

RZE—tEFR_ZE—R"F+=A8
=+—H WMERFEKZIHEAEE
WEB ARG ERKAERIEMEE-
BIBERAFBECEMSHEL  ZSH
BARIZER15% M EER M+ E
S -

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HItF
B ARBRREMP BB QA F AR
25% (ZZF— /N 1 25%) MBI %
FRS BB =M -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Are BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

9. FREHiFX (&)

(b) FIEHAXERERREAENG

at the applicable tax rates: M ) SR
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Profit before taxation FRA% AL A 70,328 90,669
Notional tax on profit before Tz BRI B 2R 0 3 PR S
taxation, calculated at the STEBRRANEF B ERIE
rates applicable to profits in
the countries concerned 14,970 17,264
Tax effect of non-deductible TR ARG E
expenses 1,057 1,325
Tax effect of non-taxable income  FERFIUW T I T & (2,192) (2,195)
Tax effect of unused tax losses REERH AT ARIEE B
not recognised s & 1,064 1,212
Over provision in BT F T R B RS
prior years - (635)
Reversal of temporary difference ¥ [0 E 5 =58 = 881
Income tax expenses FriSEifsz 14,899 17,852
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
kR BRI et

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-F—LF A=+ ALER

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EBERSRITHAEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) Hong RIEEE R TEDI S 383(1) R R A & (#58
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure EENRmERROF 2B ERENEEHE
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the chief KR BITBRAR (RAREE) (T

executives emoluments (that is, general manager) are as follows:

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Feng RESE

Mr. Xu Yan He (General Manager) IR AE (fassE)
Non-executive directors FHTES

Ms. Yu Lin T+

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun Bl hEEE

Mr. Song Ting Jiu REALE

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang WX R%E

Independent non-executive directors ~ BYFHTES

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SXERE
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERBEE
Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou ERIALE

L
¥
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Are BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EZERERITHAEME ()
(Continued)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits- scheme 2016
fees in-kind  contributions Total
E =1 BRG] ZE-RF
BEEHD REWFI= R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT ARE®TE ARETT ARETR

Executive directors BITES
Mr. Zhang Feng RESE - - - -
Mr. Xu Yan He wEAE L - 605 28 633
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong EMREEE(RZT—RF

(Resigned on 3 March 2016) —B=HET) - 127 8 135
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. Yu Lin Futdet - - - -
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 2 HEEE - - = =
Mr. Song Ting Jiu RIEAFLE - - - -
Mr. Zhao Wen Liang X REE(RZF—REF

(Appointed on 3 March 2016) —A=REZMT) - 137 1 148

Independent non-executive directors B FHTES

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SXEFE 212 = = 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERGEE 106 - - 106
Mr. Yu Bo ToHEEMR-E—RF
(Resigned on 21 January 2016) —AZ+—HEHE) 14 - - 14
Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou SHREE(RZT—RF
(Appointed on 21 January 2016) —AZt+—BEZT) 86 = = 86
418 869 47 1,334
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

During both years, no remuneration were paid or payable by the Group
to any of the directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out
in note 11 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years. No bonus was paid or payable to directors which are
discretionary or are based on the Group’s performance.

11. Individuals with Highest Emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2016: two)
are directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in
the disclosures in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments of the
remaining four (2016: three) individuals are as follows:

10. EZERESRITHAEME ()

11.

RREFE  AEELEREELME N
rdhE&ReHEENME - ERMA
REBEHEMAREE R RE A SRR
HE-PREFE ATBREFWEXLRE
MEEFAME 0T - BERBRRELR
EERRAEECTHENTEL -

EagNES
RAEZERTNEEZY  —R(ZF—X
FWMB)BEARAES  HEMFBEMH
F10 HNEA(ZZ—XF : ZR) &=
FEEMFMARFBENT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ZE-REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFT

Salaries and other emoluments e R E AN 1,796 1,594
Retirement scheme contributions RORET B 117 102
1,913 1,696

Their emoluments are all within the band of HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB835,910) for years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

HE-_Z—tFR=-ZFE—X~F+=A
=t HLEFESERFNEENHHEE
NFZHEITE1,000,0008 T (FHRAR
#835,9107T) °
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12.

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Dividends

The directors do not propose the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share has been based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB50,257,000 (2016: approximately RMB62,692,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,678,000,000 ordinary shares (2016:
1,678,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share as there
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years
presented.

R T REFEENRMRGBERAT 20174 F5HR 11

12.

13.

Are BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

RE
%$ﬁ$ﬁmﬁﬁﬁif7 —tFEt=A

T HLEFEXMENEE T—NF
) o

BRER

BERELXER
SRERBNERBEARNQFEE AEL S
A AR 50,257,000 ( —F—7N4F : 4
AR #62,692,000L) UWEAFEANE
FITEBARE INRE T 9201,678,000,000 AR
(ZZ—7X%F : 1,678,000,000 % 3@ M) 51

s
B o
B

SREBEF
ph 3 2 3 4F 0 4 AT SN B B
BB - Ml SRR RSN ERER
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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RAMBERARNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

]
-,

L1

Cost

At 1 January 2017

Additions

Disposals

Derecognised on deregistration
of a subsidiary

Transfer

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year *
Eliminated on deregistration
of a subsidiary
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Eliminated on transfer

At 31 December 2017

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2017

G
RZE2—+£-A-A
hE

HE

L) PG
BrER

25

R-E-t£+-A=1-8
SHERAE
R=E-+£-A-H
KEELH*
HE-BHBATE Y

HERERHH
e o

R=2-tF+=A=1-H

RAE
R=E-t5+-R=1-H

14. Y% - BMERFRE

I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire B ER R MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. )% ~ BENEE (E)
Fumniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and Motor and  Construction-
Building  improvements machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
BENE FE RE
BF k& HBRRRE e JES= TR st

RMBO0O  RMBO0O  RMB'OOO  RMBOOD  RMB000 RMBOOO  RMB000
ARETL  ARETT  ARETL  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Cost BAAE

At 1 January 2016 RAZE-E-A-H 80,803 2,129 103,843 2,495 12,342 21,160 222,772
Additions AE 2,256 211 2572 150 784 - 5973
Construction expenditure capitalised &AL ERFX - - - - - 18,578 18,578
Disposals HE (34) - (11822) (13 (2,864) - (14,833)
Transfer i 3,580 - 13,038 - - (16,618) -
At 31 December 2016 RZE—E+ZA=1—H 86,605 2,340 107,631 2532 10,262 23,120 232,490

Accumulated depreciation ZMERAR
and impairment

t 1 January 2016 RZE—E-f-H (17,7110) (806) (60,508) (1,416) (7.756) (834) (89,030)
Charge for the year * TEREZH (4,187) (1,158) (8,103) (409) (1433) = (15,290)
Eliminated on disposal of asset HELSERYHE 8 - 9,719 107 2,107 - 11,941
At 31 December 2016 RZE—~E+ZA=+-A 21,889) (1,964) (58,892) (1718) (7,082) (834) (92,379)
Carrying amounts RAE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—E+ZA=+-A 64,716 376 48,739 814 3,180 22,286 140,111
. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain of the Group’s buildings 2 RZTE—tFR=ZFT-—X"F+T=A

with a total carrying amount of approximately RMB33,159,000 (2016: =t+—H AEBETLEEHENAR
approximately RMB41,185,000) were pledged to secure the Group’s bank #33,159,000 (=T —RF : HARH
loan of RMB30,000,000 (2016: RMB100,000,000) (Note 23). 41 185,000 ﬁ)E’HE:J’—EVE?%ZKEIfEﬁ%

FAR#30,000,000C(ZZT—71F : AR
M‘ 100,000,0007z><MT*$23)E’Jﬁ&#ﬁuu o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tH&+-_A=+—HILFE

15. Prepaid Lease Payments

15. A HHEFIE

2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Cost B E
At 1 January n—H—H 110,238 110,238
Disposal HE (38,238) -
At 31 December W+=—HA=+—H 72,000 110,238
Accumulated amortisation Gt
At 1 January n—H—H (10,660) (8,307)
Charge for the year REFZH (1,570) (1,570)
Eliminated on disposal of assets B ER L 1,737 -
Transfer to construction-in-progress BHUBERETRE (628) (783)
At 31 December ®W+—-_A=+—H (11,121) (10,660)
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 60,879 99,578

The prepaid lease payments represent interest in land situated in the
PRC which were amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

On 19 October 2017, the Group entered into the resumption
agreements with Lianjiang County Land Development Centre and the
Lianjiang Committee, pursuant to which the Lands will be redeemed
by the Lianjiang County Land Development Centre for a total
consideration of approximately to RMB63,869,000.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s prepaid lease payments
with a total carrying amount of approximately RMB60,879,000 (2016:
approximately RMB62,448,000) were pledged to secure the Group's
bank loan of RMB30,000,000 (2016: RMB100,000,000) (Note 23).

ZEMNEERAERELCN P ENEE i
2 REENEAERERNEEREZER
EBESH o

RZE—tF+A+NA AEEHRESET
SZEMBRALOREBETIEZ ST WED
Hoomith o BEITIETMBERED LB AER
BARE#63,869,000 T fEZ S -

RZFB—+tFR_ZT—AR"F+t_A=+—
H ANEERKREEL AREGE0,879,000
TT(ZF—RF : HHAR62,448,0007T)
MEMAERBEEAELAEERITERA
R #:30,000,000c(ZFE— R E: ARK
100,000,000 7) (K17E 23) A & ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

16. Intangible Assets 16. B EE
Anesthetic
drug
production
Computer and selling Customer Selling
software  Trademarks rights  Trade name list licences Total
Bl R RUNEEHE E3 e EFXE  BENTR st

RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RMBOOO  RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMB000
ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT  ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR

Cost A
At 1 January 2016 RZE—E-f-H 555 75 53143 46,483 39,502 1,007 140,765
Addition B 121 - - - - - 121
At 31 December 2016, RB—RET-A=+-H-

1 January 2017 and “E-t5-A-BR

31 December 2017 “F+EF-A=1-H 676 75 53143 46,483 39,502 1,007 140,886

Accumulated amortisation 2 EHRAE
and impairment

At 1 January 2016 R=Z-7"5-A-H (395) (75) - - (20,220) (606) (21,29)
Charge for the year TEETH (281) - - - (3950) (201) (4,432)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=T-H

and 1 January 2017 R-Z—+%5-A-H (676) (75) = L (24,170) (807) (25,729)
Charge for the year REESH - - - - (3,950) (200) (4,150)
At 31 December 2017 R=E-tF+=A=1-H (676) (75) = = (28,120) (1,007) (29,878)
Carrying amounts RAE
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tF+=A=1+-A - - 53,143 46,483 11,382 - 111,008
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"F+-A=1-H s = 53,143 46,483 15,332 200 115,158
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tH&+-_A=+—HILFE

16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Intangible assets arising from business combination

The anesthetic drug production and selling right, trade name
and customer list are intangible assets acquired on 30 November
2010 through the acquisition of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Neptunus Fuyao”).

Anesthetic drug production and selling right represents the fair
value of the rights as at the acquisition date in respect of the
production and selling specific anesthetic drug in the PRC.

The anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade name
are considered by the management of the Group as having an
indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net
cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. It is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it may have
been impaired.

Selling licences are intangible assets acquired on 4 January
2013 through the acquisition of the 100% equity interests in
Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Neptunus Changjian”).

Anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade
name

The recoverable amounts, which were assessed by reference to
a valuation carried out by Verity Appraisals Company Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer with appropriate
qualification and experience in the valuation of similar assets
in the relevant industry, of the anesthetic drug production and
selling right and trade name based on the estimated value-in-
use calculations were higher than their carrying amounts at
31 December 2017 and 2016. Accordingly, no provision for
impairment loss for anesthetic drug production and selling right or
trade name is considered necessary.

The recoverable amount of the anesthetic drug production and
selling right is determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budget approved by the executive directors covering a four-year
period. Cash flows beyond four-year period are extrapolated using
an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%)
which is consistent with the forecasts. The growth rates used do
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the medical
industries. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
21% (2016: 21%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. Intangible Assets (Continued)
(b) Anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade

(o)

name (Continued)

The recoverable amount of trade name is determined based on
the fair value of trade name as measured using a royalty rate of
4.5% (2016: 4.5%) on sales and discount rate of 21% (2016:
21%). The annual sales was projected based on financial budgets
approved by the executive directors covering a four-year period
and has been extrapolated using an average 3% (2016: 3%)
growth rate. The average 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate is based
on the average 10-year consumer price index in the PRC and
does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
pharmaceutical industries.

The anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade
name has an indefinite useful life which was assessed by the
management at the end of the reporting period.

Customer list

The customer list has a finite useful life and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 10 years. The useful life of the customer
list is determined with reference to the estimated future revenue
from the customer list which is based on historical information.
The management is of the view that the future economic benefits
that can be derived from the customer list beyond the 10-year
period are insignificant.

The fair value of the customer list at the date of business
combination was measured using the excess earnings method
under the income approach. This calculation is based on the
present value of the incremental after-tax cash flows attributable
to the customer list and a discount rate of 21%. The annual cash
flow is calculated by reference to the latest applicable annual
revenue from existing customers and has been extrapolated using
an average 3% growth rate. The average 3% growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth and management forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. At the date of the business combination,
the fair value of the customer list amounted to approximately
RMB39,502,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

16. Intangible Assets (Continued) 16. B EE ()
(d) Selling licences (d) SHEFFTH

Selling licences have a finite useful life and is amortised on a HEMABAREAEAFRILIART
straight-line basis over 5 years. The useful life of the selling SOENSENEETE o SHERTAIE AL
licenses is determined with reference to the period of validity of AERDHSEHETAIENE R
the selling licences. BE -

The fair value of the selling licences at the date of business REBEIHBEHNEEFAIERTE
combination was measured using a relief from royal approach T AR A ER R BR IR B AT 2 o 3% 1h
under the income approach. The valuation was carried out by B EBLAEEREEGHERM AT
Ascent Partners, Valuation Service Limited, an independent EfRAR AR (EEELHERAITER
qualified professional valuer with appropriate qualification LB EETHENER RLER) #EITT
and experience in the valuation of similar assets in the relevant i o RZETE TILAE ERF5.1% BRI
industry. The calculation was based on the royalty rate of 5.1% BER19.84% IR K AEE - FEFH
on sales and discount rate of 19.84%. The annual sales were ENERPTEFI A BFRIUEK
projected based on financial budget approved by the executive TEE /IR FEA3.19% FI9g R %
directors covering a five-year period and has been extrapolated i HEET © 3.19% T RE T ERA
using an average 3.19% growth rate. The average 3.19% growth BErH+F B ERIESLERERE
rate is based on the average 10-year consumer price index of the Al B PR BAERTT ¥ 2 TR EIG
PRC and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for B REBEHBBNBEETIE
the relevant industry. As at the date of the business combination, ANER AR 1,007,0007T ©

the fair value of the selling licenses were RMB1,007,000.

17. Deposit for Acquisition of Property, Plant and 17.BEY* - BEERRENZS

Equipment

The deposit of approximately RMB4,425,000 (2016: approximately L EBOANREE 4,425,000 T E (2 —X
RMB914,000) mainly represents deposit to acquire property, plant F: HAR¥914,000 L) EZ AR EINE
and equipment for the production base in Fuzhou. During the year, HEHEMMBEYE  BEMRENRE -
additional deposit of approximately RMB12,526,000 was paid and REERN » BEENAARE12,526,000 TH
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB9,015,000 was BEIMNES R AREE 9,015,000 THIVIE ~ R
transferred and delivered to the Group and the relevant deposit were ELREEEZERINANEERABEZESH
reclassified as property, plant and equipment. BIROERME - BFERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHEZ

F—tHF+A=1—HLFE

18. Inventories 18. 78
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Raw materials R 86,046 62,398
Work-in-progress ERm 20,388 24,065
Finished goods B 40,034 50,286
146,468 136,749
The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised as expense and BRAABRS Wit ABHNTFESES TN
included in profit or loss is as follows: T
2017 2016
—ET—tF ZE—RF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B ARBTT ARBETF T
Carrying amounts of inventories sold ~ E&FERE T 342,909 362,115
Write down of inventories MRFE (i) 12,460 4,764
Reversal of write down of inventories 77 & &[0 (ii) (307) (1,860)
355,062 365,019
Notes: 5T

(i)

As at 31 December 2017, write down of inventories was
approximately RMB12,460,000 (2016: approximately
RMB4,764,000). During the year, obsolete inventories
of approximately RMB12,460,000 (2016: approximately
RMB4,764,000) were identified and recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

During the year, obsolete inventories written down previously were
sold.

Therefore, a reversal of write down of inventories of approximately
RMB307,000 (2016: approximately RMB1,860,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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(i)

RZE—+E+-_A=+—H " #
BIFEEHARE 12,460,000 T (=F
—NF AR 4,764,0007T) ©
FAREFELH AR 12,460,000

TT(ZZE—RF -
?E/\&Elﬁﬂ%@”ﬁl SE

JT) B &R

MR8l K HE TR

HAR¥ 4,764,000

FA - EAMBHREFECES -

At FEBRBERHOARS

307,000 L (=%
1,860,000 7T ) A
IR RAPRER °

—RNFHARK
fmeRmkEMER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= + 2N
‘e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+t&+-_A=+—HILFE

19. Trade and Other Receivables

19. B BRFR R HAtb & TR TR

2017 2016

—E—+t5F ZE—RF

(Restated)

(F&5E751)

Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000

g AR¥T T AREBFT

Trade and bills receivables FEUAR TR 2 FE U R R 174,826 178,303
Less: allowance for impairment loss W R EERRHE (2,130) (2,282)
172,696 176,021

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  FEU [ 2B A BIFIE (i), 34(d) 1,897 3,265
Amounts due from related companies  fEUR 88 A AIFIA (i), 34(d) 13,183 9,026

Amount due from the intermediate FEY R R A EIFRIA

parent company (i), 34(d) 138 138
Other receivables HAb fENGRIE 3,728 5,093
Value-added tax recoverable A eI AT (i) 462 579
Loans and receivables B EYRIE 192,104 194,122
Prepayment and deposits AR RIES 10,937 16,796
203,041 210,918

All of the trade and other receivables classified as current assets are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Notes:

(i) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one
year.

(i) Value-added tax recoverable is value-added tax paid by the Group

eligible for offsetting value-added tax payable to arise on future
revenue streams in accordance with relevant PRC tax laws.
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Aging analysis
The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills receivables,
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the

Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. EUWRBRF &
(a) BRED
MT%$EIZFW$ YA EE
RBEEAMRF) 2 BB (RERA

Hit WA ()

respective revenue recognition dates: WRAHEE)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Within 3 months 3EAA 133,170 142,804

More than 3 months but less A3 EAELH 1218 A

than 12 months 38,340 28,059
Over 12 months BB 1218 A 1,186 5,158
172,696 176,021

Trade and bills receivables are due within 30-180 days (2016: 30
days) from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy is set out in note 33.1.

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade receivables directly.

JRE UK B 5k e P L R e — ﬁxﬁﬁéf%ﬁ%’ftlj“‘
Hi 5302 180H (=& —7 4 : 30RH)
WEEISZ AT - AEBEEBRNE—2
FHIEEMAMIFE33.1 -

FE Wi B KR (B

FE U AR SR ) RUE RS 1B Y DA R A R RS
B MHEAER B RS WK [ X SRR A] BE
HRE - EHERT  BEREEKER
MR EEE -

(b)

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss: WEEERESE)

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZEREF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

FisE ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January n—A—H 2,282 2,453
Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE (i) 350 311
Recovery of impairment loss W BRI E RS (ii) (52) (286)
Uncollectible amount written off 455 Ux [B] 2k 78 i $4 (iii) (450) (196)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 2,130 2,282
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. BWRF R HA BRI IE (48)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued) (b) FEWERFUR(E ()
Notes: 5T -
() As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of the iy RZE—tHF+-_A=+—

Group amounting to approximately RMB350,000 (2016:
approximately RMB311,000) were individually determined to
be impaired and allowance had been made. These individually
impaired receivables were outstanding for over 1 year as at the
end of the reporting period or were due from customers with
financial difficulties.

(i)  Approximately RMB52,000 (2016: approximately (i)
RMB286,000) of the trade receivables previously impaired was
recovered during the year. Therefore, the impairment loss was
reversed.

(i)  As at 31 December 2017, a bad debt of approximately (iii)
RMB450,000 (2016: approximately RMB196,000) was written
off against trade receivables directly as the Group assessed
that the recovery of the amount is remote.

(iv)  The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. (iv)

B AEBEMNEBEROAR
# 350,000 C( =T —RF 4
AR #311,0007T) {85 2 E
B - WrHREE - ZZEBRE
FEMAR SR 2 ] EAR B i BAR A
w1 FEAMBRENES

ERTERERNRUER RN ARE
52,000 TR GFAWE (=T —K
F 4 AR ¥ 286,0007T) °
It - RERED EE o

R-ZZE—t&F+=-_A=+—
B ARASETEKEZK
BHRSEMR  BUZERNHAR
450,000 C(ZZF—RE : 4
AR# 196,000 0) EEHEEIR
BRI o

REBEWERZSHEBFTEE
K o

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) MEfR{E M EWBR
The aging analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually I 4 18 71 Sk B2 B8 4R R AL B 1Y FE M BR 3K
nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: BRI ST T
2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Neither past due nor impaired P fE580 H SRk (E 126,618 142,804
Past due but not impaired: SR ERE
1 to 3 months past due g1 =3M8A 39,735 28,059
Over 3 months past due AR E 38 A 6,343 5,158
172,696 176,021
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide 7 4 160 HA Sk R (B 7Y FE WO IE B 2 2 N0 ARG
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. HRRESRHE S EE o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a ERMEERENERREESZZERR
number of independent customers that have a good track record FRENAEETPEE -  REBEL
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes B BIEEMEE BREEXKTESKE
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these B) - MARDER/FIBRKD - HE
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit UL FAERIERER

quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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20. Principal Protected Deposits

On 9 February, 2017, the Group entered into a principal protected
interest rate linked structured deposit arrangement with the principal
amount of RMB30,000,000 with a bank with maturity period of 89
days and which carried floating rate interest with a maximum of 3.5%
per annum. Interest rates of the structured deposits ranged from 0%
to 3.5% per annum depending on the movement of the 3-month US
Dollar London Interbank Offer Rate.

On 10 May, 2017, the Group entered into a principal protected interest
rate linked structured deposit arrangement with the principal amount
of RMB30,000,000 with a bank with maturity period of 40 days and
which carried floating rate interest with a maximum of 3.8% per
annum. Interest rates of the structured deposits ranged from 0% to
3.8% per annum depending on the movement of the 3-month US
Dollar London Interbank Offer Rate.

On 6 July, 2017, the Group entered into a principal protected interest
rate linked structured deposit arrangement with the principal amount
of RMB30,000,000 with a bank with maturity period of 95 days and
which carried floating rate interest with a maximum of 4.1 % per
annum. Interest rates of the structured deposits ranged from 0% to
4.1% per annum depending on the movement of the 3-month US
Dollar London Interbank Offer Rate.

On 29 November, 2017, the Group entered into a principal protected
interest rate linked structured deposit arrangement with the principal
amount of RMB30,000,000 with a bank with maturity period of 30
days and which carried floating rate interest with a maximum of 3.85%
per annum. Interest rates of the structured deposits ranged from 0%
to 3.85% per annum depending on the movement of the 3-month US
Dollar London Interbank Offer Rate.

RYHBEREEEMRMROABRAT  2017F 55, 123
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‘e ISR A

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. RABEFER

R-Z—+EF-AhB AEHRE-FER
TRI A &8s AR 30,000,0007T -
R R HEEHERSFE
733.5% RARF REBEFRLHE < &
SRBUEGTRZANEXER=EAXTHRH
RITAXRBEITNN FEFO%E3.5% °

RZT—+tFRATH  AEERHE—FHR
1TRIM A e w8 A AR 30,000,0007T ¢
FIHRHAR B HA40H - RIFEFTERSTFER
73.8% MIRAFE N REBMEFRELHE - 3%
SEBUGERZNEZAE=EAZTHA
RITRIEFEZHMNFEFO%E3.8% ©

RZT—tFEANE AEEE—FIR
TR A& © % A AR 30,000,000 7T -
MR AEIOS B - RIZBFHERS TR
BAN% RN P RSB ETRELHE - &
EHEBETR N EAE=EAZTHEH
RITAEFEEHMN FEFO%EL1% ©

RZE—+tF+—A=+NB &
BH-FHETIVUASESHEAARK
30,000,000 + B|EAEAE A EAZ0 R - &%
BT B RS E B 53.85% KR AR F R 4
BUETRLHE ZEEBUEER2FER
E=EAETHRBRITAEFLELBMN
THF0% E3.85% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

20. Principal Protected Deposits (Continued)
On 24 March 2017, the Group entered into a gold-linked principal
protected deposit arrangement with the principal amount of
RMB10,000,000 with a bank with maturity period of 91 days and
which carried interest with a fixed interest rate of 1.55% per annum
with a floating interest rate of 2.55% per annum based on the spot
rate of Gold at the date of valuation.

On 21 April 2017, the Group entered into a gold-linked principal
protected deposit arrangement with the principal amount of
RMB40,000,000 with a bank with maturity period of 91 days and
which carried interest with a fixed interest rate of 1.55% per annum
with a floating interest rate of 2.65% per annum based on the spot
rate of Gold at the date of valuation.

Such structured deposits are stated at amortised cost. As at 31
December 2017, no gold-linked principal protected structured deposit
arrangement and principal protected interest rate linked structured
deposit arrangement were entered into the Group and interest income
were received as disclosed in note 7 to these consolidated financial
statements.

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents

20. RAEIFFR ()

RZE—tF=ZA=+MA AEEHE—
MIRTTEI A2 £ 5 A AR 10,000,000
7T BIEEIM AR AN E S HORAR
FRZH - REEMNEFEL1.55% RER
HEAHNESNRERNZHFEFS
2.55% 58 °

RZEBE—+FEWA_-+—H KNEFHE—
MIRITRI L A& &% A ARME 40,000,000
7T BIEAEIR AR 91 B E S HE R AE
FREH - RETEMNEEL1.55% RER
HEBHOFESNHERNZEHFIEFE
2.65% 58 °

RERBBUETFIZRBEAAT R - R=F
—tF+ZA=+—H AEEALEFTL
EEHBRAEBUET KL RRAE
RGBT RL Y R E I S WA
BRALR S M BRRMET -

2. BERBEEEY

2017 2016
—ZE—+5F ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Cash at bank and on hand RITHERERE 350,724 329,195
Less: Fixed deposit with maturity of A 3E A A L BIE
3 months or more 897 BATF R = (4,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in the RGBSR RS
consolidated statement of financial REnERNEE R
position and the consolidated ReFEY
statement of cash flows 350,724 325,195

In 2017, deposits with banks carry interest at market rates which range
from 1.35% to 2.38%. (2016: 1.85% to 3.38%) per annum.

RZZE—tF  ROGFRETHFEMEN
F1.35%F2.38%(ZF—"F :1.85% =&
3.38%)HE °
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Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

22. Trade and Other Payables 22. BN BRFM R HAEARIE
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-REF
(Restated)
(F2=E51)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihE=s AR¥T T AREEFTT
Trade and bills payables FERTBR A R B R 4R 70,718 67,198
Receipts in advance TR FIA 13,160 7,464
Other payables and accruals E@Fgﬁy’ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ% 61,793 70,538
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JEAST R 2 PN A RISk IE (i), 34(d) 31,262 37,800
Amount due to the immediate JT'&?HE%A Al5kIE
parent company (i), 34(d) - 4,111
Amounts due to related companies JERBAE R EIRIA (i), 34(d) 16 13
Financial liabilities measured at RE AT 2/
amortised cost SRAaE 176,949 187,124
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FTERMNERREMENREFEEEN —F
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. An AL ERERASIZEREE - B2
aging analysis of trade and bills payables at the end of the reporting WERIZBEZAHAENEMER R ER
period, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows: EEMBRRTWOT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETTT
Within 3 months 3fEAR 57,140 37,878
4 to 6 months 4Z=61EA 6,064 14,224
7 to 12 months 721218AR 510 6,630
Over 1 year 18 E 7,004 8,466
70,718 67,198
Notes: 5
(i) As at 31 December 2017, the balances are unsecured, interest-free (i) R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—8 %=
and repayable on demand. i*ﬁ??%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ R B REAERERE
g o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

23. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

23. M2 SRITHEE

2017 2016
—E-tF —TRF
Effective interest rate Maturity RMB'000 RMB'000
1 ES FEA ARBTT AR®ET T
Short-term bank loan - secured 4.35% (2016: 4.85%) within 1 year
REORITER - BEA 4.35% (ZF—"F : 4.85%) —FR 30,000 100,000

The interest-bearing bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost. All
of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB.

RMB30,000,000 facility for issue of bills and RMB100,000,000 loan
facility were obtained from a bank on 18 May 2015 and 22 July 2015
respectively. On 4 August 2016, the loan facility and bill facility were
renewed and combined into one bank facility of RMB100,000,000.
The renewed bank facility is shared by loan and issue of bill, secured
by pledge of buildings and prepaid lease payments of a subsidiary,
and carries common profitability and gear ratio covenants on that
subsidiary. Issue of bill, in addition to the aforementioned pledge,
requires at least 50% pledge of bank deposit. Bill payable, if it is issued,
carries no interest.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016, the bank facility was fully utilised and loan
of RMB100,000,000 was outstanding and the pledged buildings
and prepaid lease payments were stated at an aggregate value of
approximately RMB103,633,000. No bills were issued.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2017, the total bank facility was utilised to the extent
of RMB30,000,000 and the Group has available utilised banking
facilities of RMB70,000,000. The pledged buildings and prepaid
lease payments were stated at an aggregate value of approximately
RMB33,159,000 and RMB60,879,000 respectively. No bills were issued.

M SIRTTIEE IR BRI - A&
FEREBUAARKEE -

ZE @ E AR 30,000,000 R EREE
AER#100,000,000tHBIR—E—HFH
A+ \BE-_Z—HF+A-_+_-_BHE
TS RZZE—X"FNANH - L E
HEREREERMECENBEHREHK—
1A A% 100,000,000 THSE/TRLE - BB
MEBEHMNEITREC BREEERER L
TEBREEZ  U—RNBRAANEEKLE
NHEEFEERFTAESAENEFRE
B EIETIERNZMI BRG] - B EaltE
WoN BITEBRFEELS0%MRITER
RFS - BHRIE(MEET) THE -

BE-_S—XAF+-A=+—HLEE
R-ZE—XE+-A=+—8  RTRE
BE2HBAKEHRARE 100,000,000 7T
REE AREENFEEREMNHEERE
BREEAFTHARYE 103,633,0007T © Wi
BITER -

BE-F—tF+=-A=t-BLFE
RZFB—EHF+ZA=+—H RITBE
%2 8B A R #30,000,0007T M &K &
BEHABAETRE ARM70,000,000
T AREHENEERENEERERT
E5 3l # A R ¥ 33,159,000 T & A R #
60,879,000 7T ° I MEHITE o
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24. Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent

25.

Company

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extent the repayment date of entrusted loan in the amount of
RMB9,000,000 as Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to
the Company that it would not demand repayment of the above-
mentioned shareholder’'s entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the
repayment of such shareholder’'s entrusted loan would not adversely
affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives
as set out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August
2005 (the "Prospectus”), and (2) each of the independent non-
executive directors was of the opinion that the repayment of such
shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the operations
of the Company and/or the implementation of its business objectives
as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company would make an
announcement in respect of the decision of the independent non-
executive directors made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive
cash flow and had retained profits in the relevant financial year.

Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

24 HBEB QA REFERER

RZZE——FWMAREH  HNEEADA
$ RIAHEBSTSEREE FIRRER
EER EBNARIRBE—PEREZS
1%%)&%%9omum0nﬁﬂa@m@ B 3F
FEE MWEEZBREZREBERETE
HARRAZEBR /A RAR_ETH
FNAZHNBATIEZBRER(HBRE
BDA#EAREZEEB SRR TFEE
QEBUIATESRAEEZRREZR
EBERETSHARRAZEB R REITH
BRERAHARRZEK B IZEEKTHE
2 PRAQNRERBIYIFRITE BIRIE
Q) FIEREELRAE  RO)ARFNERH
FRFEHESIHERSRERREBEF -

Deferred Revenue 25. EFE W
Other
Subsidy A Subsidy B Subsidy C Subsidy D Subsidy E Subsidy F subsidy Total
HBA % Bhc D) THEE HEF RtbE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note ) (Note f) (Note i)
GES)) (Bzkb) (Bzkc) (Pt d) (Bizke) (Bz) (B
t 1 January 2016 R-F-7E-A—-H 500 245 167 511 40 3,208 975 5,646
Amortisation for the year ~ AEE = (245) = = - (401) (107) (753)
At31 December 2016and  H=E-7"E+=F=+-H
1 January 2017 k=%-+£-A-H 500 - 167 511 40 2807 868 4,893
Amortisation for theyear ~ AEFEH (500) - (167) 212 - (401 - (1,280)
At31December2017  W=E-tF+=A=1-H - - - 29 40 2,406 868 3613
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+t&+-_A=+—HILFE

25. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

In July 2003, a subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by the
Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen
Bureau of Finance for assisting the Company in performing
research and development of interferon ointment. The amount of
RMB500,000 was recognised as income in 2017.

In December 2004, a subsidy of RMB2,000,000 was jointly granted
by the Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and Information
and the Shenzhen Development and Reform Bureau as a science
and technology fund to subsidise the acquisition of certain plant
and machinery. A further subsidy of RMB1,000,000 for the same
purpose was granted in July 2005. These subsidies are not required
to be repaid and the amount of RMB245,000 was recognised as
income over the useful life of the related plant and machinery in
2016.

In December 2005, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by
the Shenzhen Bureau of Finance for financing the research and
development of interferon vaginal effervescent tablet. The subsidy
is not required only if the project is subsequently approved and
certified by the Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and
Information upon its completion. The amount of approximately
RMB167,000 was recognised as income in 2017.

In December 2009, a subsidy of RMB3,000,000 was granted by
Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and Information for
financing a project to carry out the research and development
of HIN1. The subsidy is not required to be repaid. In 2017, total
amount of approximately RMB212,000 was recognised as income.
The remaining amount of RMB299,000 will be recognised when the
project is completed.

In April 2011, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by Science,
Industry, Trade and Information Technology Commission of
Shenzhen Municipality for financing the research and development
of FAHINTREREZZ H . The subsidy is not required to be repaid.
The subsidy of RMB360,000 was recognised as income to match
with the research and development expenses incurred during the
year 2011. The remaining amount of RMB40,000 will be recognised
when the project is completed.

25. JEFE Wz (48)

f i -

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

RZZTZ=F+LA  FIImE B
RERITHEBEREFTARE
500,000 st KI4# BN - BB A2 B
RERZETEZRIABTRERE - R=
T—+%F - 2 AR 500,000 THE
REWA °

RZTENF+=A - FIImRER
s B RERYIMERMBE BER
% F AR 2,000,000 THIFE) - 1
ARERREMES  UHBKREET
BEEHKES - R—ZFEFRFELA - K
£ EEBFEIMEEI AR 1,000,000
T EAERNAR - WEHDEAE
8318 - AR 245000t =2 —X
FERBBME LGS ERFR
HRAWA o

RZZZRFE+ZA  FINMHERE
®F AR 400,000 THHE) - EA
MREFMETEZEANHE - R
BHEEETRE  BERYIMRER
iz B R ERRBNERT « 1IE
BHHBAEE -RZT—+tF %
EHANRE 167,000 THERABWA °

RZTEZNE+=F FINImEE
ITEBEMEELZEERETARK
3,000,000 7T B 44 B) + 1E & # 17 B
FHINTWIBEERE - LM EEAEE
B -RZTE—LF $EHOARE
212,000 TR AWA - BT 2FEA
R ¥ 299,000 TG AIEIE B EA1E T
LATERR o

RZZE——FWMA  FIMREIE
fMiEBLZBg® T AR 400,000
TCAVE A B AR 8 37 AL HIN 7 R
SEE ZHEHETEE - ARE
360,000 7T K 1 B) B ERER B U A LA
RER 2T ——FHHEENFERH
% o fp &R AR 40,0004 A £
18 B SER 14 T LARERR ©

128 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire B ER R T &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—tF+_A=+—HILFE

25. Deferred Revenue (Continued) 25 RIEW = (&)
Notes: (Continued) 5T - (&)
(f)  In October 2013, a subsidy of RMB4,010,000 was granted by Jinan ) RZZE—=F+A BNTEZRE
Regional Finance Bureau of Fuzhou City for financing the property, M BE T AR 4,010,000 7T 89/
plant and equipment in relation to new GMP enhancement of B) - EAMRERMN A EE A GMP
production base in Fuzhou. The subsidy is not required to be repaid. BUEEANYE  BERRENR
The amount is recognised to match with the useful life of property, B ZMPARER ZeBwRA
plant and equipment for the new GMP enhancement. As at 31 WA - ABCA FTGMPERGER Y2 -
December 2017, RMB401,000 (2016: RMB401,000) was recognised. ERBENERER RS —+F

+= H_+ B AR#401,0007¢
( T—RF : AR 401,0007T) i

BEBA -
(i)  During the year, the Group did not obtain any subsidies (2016: RMB ()  RAERFE  NEBIWRKEZEE MK
Nil) from local government authorities for financing the research and FEFREBEAAE (=T —RF -
development activities. These subsidies are not required to be repaid. ARBZL)  (ERBBHMEIHN
BhEER) o ZEMBNBAERE -
The directors consider that, except for the subsidies mentioned in note EERE - BRWE7 &M 25 B f e
7 and note 25, there were no other forms of government assistance N REEWEEEME XA B EF
from which the Group has directly benefited. BHESH -
26. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of 26. IRE WA R R AW FTEH
Financial Position
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (a) FEMBERREABEABIERS !

position represents:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
PRC EIT PEI AR

Provision for the year NEEREE 10,878 12,322

Balance of tax provisions relating BERIFEBBN
to prior years TR R B AL 55 2,342 2,342
13,220 14,664
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+t&+-_A=+—HILFE

26. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of 6. REMBMRRERANFTEH
Financial Position (Continued) (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEHEEERERE

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year as follows:

ERER A M AR K FER AR LN IR
(BE)/ aBNEKILD REAFER
g

Fair value
change of
non-current
assets Others Total
FRBEE
HRFEEE Hith et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥T T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2016 FQ\:;E_/\TE_H —H 19,098 (1,435) 17,663
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss A/ Bk BBz (704) 444 (260)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—R"F+-A=+—H
1 January 2017 E=ZE—+F—H—H 18,394 (991) 17,403
Credited to profit or loss sFABIRER (712) (728) (1,440)
At 31 December 2017 R=ZF—tH+=A=+-—H 17,682 (1,719) 15,963
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised BERERE AR R R
on the consolidated statement of IR IR B EEFE
financial position (1,719) (991)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised EHM G ISR R TERA
on the consolidated statement FERIESEFE
of financial position 17,682 18,394
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 15,963 17,403
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of 6. ME M BN KANWETE
Financial Position (Continued) (#8)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () WARBRMNELEBIEEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RERR  NEBRARDABIES
losses of approximately RMB88,191,000 (2016: approximately BHARM-88,191,000 (=T —<
RMB102,477,000) available for offset against future profits that F: M ANRE102,477,0007T) ¢ A
may be carried forward for five years for PRC EIT purposes. No FB VAR 85 2R 3% A 37 0] gt A B 1 ZE AT
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses SHAEERF - EREEER R EF
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. o AR B IR B R R RIEE R IR
27. Share Capital 27. 7R
2017 2016 2017 2016
Number of Number of
shares shares
—E—tF —ETRF
RAEE RHEE “E—tF ZERF
Notes ‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Fitzx TR Th ARETR ARETT
Registered, issued and fully paid: - BBETRERRA -
Domestic shares of RMBO.10 each SREEARE0.10T
BN R () 1,252,000 1,252,000 125,200 125,200
H shares of RMB0.10 each SREEARE0.10T
B H B (ii) 426,000 426,000 42,600 42,600

1,678,000 1,678,000 167,800 167,800

Registered, issued and fully paid: AT BETRBRRA -

t 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+=A=+—-A 1,678,000 1,678,000 167,800 167,800
The owners of domestic shares and H shares are entitled to receive WQW&HH&E’J%E/\E%WHXTH%*ﬁW
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote U BRREARAEE L AGRE—
per share at meetings of the Company. All domestic shares and H e FﬁﬁWﬁﬂx&Hﬂx“}$ R T EE=
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. BRIEHER -

Notes: ffsE -
(i) The domestic shares are not currently listed on any stock exchange. (i) AERRRIAMMEHIEARR S LT °
(i) The H shares have been issued and listed on the GEM of The Stock (iiy HBREEZ-ZZEREALARBRET
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 5 September 2005. WHAEBHAERSHAER AT GEM L
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BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

28. Reserves

(a)

(b)

(9]

Share premium
Share premium arose from the issue of shares at prices in excess
of their par value less share issue expenses.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve comprises (i) the difference between the total
amount of fair value of shares issued to the immediate holding
company and a fellow subsidiary of the Company and the
amount of the net assets value acquired during the acquisition of
Neptunus Fuyao, (ii) the difference between the total amount of
consideration paid to the immediate parent company and a fellow
subsidiary of the Company and the amount of the net assets
value acquired during the acquisition of Neptunus Changjian,
and (iii) the difference between the total amount of consideration
paid from immediate parent company and a subsidiary of the
Company and the amount of the net assets value disposed during
disposal of Neptunus Nano.

Statutory reserve fund

The Company is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit
according to its PRC audited financial statements to the statutory
eserve fund until the balance of such reserve has reached 50% of
the Company’s issued share capital. Any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making
up losses or for capitalisation into share capital, provided that the
remaining balance is not less than 20% of the issued share capital
after such capitalisation.

28. 15

(a)

(b)

(c)

RADEE
BREHTZBROHELENRNDEEBH
HE(EMRERNDETER -

=N
BERRBEREGORAARRERERA
AR —FERFME AR ETHRG
NP EAFRRBEIRERCWE
BEFEZANERE  (IXMNTAR
AEBR AR N —ER RN E AR
RELFRNBESTREMEEEE
FEMDRZENER - R (i) NQE
HEBRRRARFR-—HMEARD
NRELFEEHEBEIMAKEHE
BEFE 2 MHOFRE -

EEAES

RARBAZEDBEBIES EEEZ
BREANGEFI10%DEEEZEATE
¢ HEZREABREINRAADE
TR 50% A LE o AR A ARIEE
LA RZEINER - EEAEESRAA
RERHERE  EREARE - &
BETORETEBRERLEHE R
TTREAN20% ©
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28. Reserves (Continued)
(d) Distributability of reserves

(e)

At 31 December 2017, the Company had no distributable
reserves, while its accumulated losses, calculated in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and relevant rules and
regulations, amounted to approximately RMB102,047,000 (2016:
approximately RMB118,876,000).

Capital Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
bank borrowings and entrusted loans from the immediate parent
company) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
less unaccrued proposed dividends plus adjusted net debt.

RYTHBEREEEMRMROABRAT  2017F 5%, 133

= vhr 23
‘e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

28. f#fE (1)
(d) BEZTHRME

(e)

RZEBE—+F+_A=+—8 &2
AN E N Mo IRFER - MIRAQRE
BERMAIREHEETE RRAGE
HE2FEBEEHARE 102,047,000 7T
(ZE—R"F : HHAR™ 118,876,000
JT) °

EXEE
AEEEREANBERERERAKHE
SESENEET - RS E RAR
R SR [ ¥R K A B Al R 25 40 B & A 2R
M - AR EERBRKEEER R
REEERIZABRAESHE

AEBEBERLERBT RERELEAR
B AERRSBRRE®R (TTERR
SEEKFER) BREE AR
ROBE RERERNTE  LERIEL
PR B ST N AE R H SR o

AEBRFEGREHBEA L ED
AEREREEAGEE Bt s - &
B HFER FE R RER (B
BRTEEREBRRRRFEME) M
FREAFN BB RAERREEE
W) o RPBERBIEREERTA KR
FREAFD KR E S MEHBAES
L
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-T +E+-A=+—BILFE

28. {1 (1)

28. Reserves (Continued)

(e) Capital Management (Continued) (e) EXREE ()
During 2017, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from RZT—+F - AEBREA KD
2016, was to maintain a gearing ratio within 30% to 70%. In ZE-RNEER REFELAEELL

RR30%E70% 2 o BHEFELRE

order to maintain the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of

dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital B xR KEBAIELHERNMN TK
to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce BRI E SR BITHRGD  ARE
debt. The gearing ratio at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as WEBAR  EEFHNEERES L E
follows: BENABLEBGE RZTE—LFR=
E-RFETZA=+T—HWELXEE
LEEIT -
2017 2016
—EB—tF TTRF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o AR¥TT ARETTT
Total borrowings IEpEt
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BSRITEE 23 30,000 100,000
Entrusted loans from the HEBESARELER
immediate parent company 24 9,000 9,000
39,000 109,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents  J& : & RIRSEEY 21 (350,724) (325,195)
Adjusted net surplus KRR RSFE (311,724) (216,195)
Total equity AR 749,768 699,539
Gearing ratio BEARABEE N/A N/A
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the gearing ratio of the RZE—+FERZFT—R"F+=

Group was nil. Except for a subsidiary of the Group which is
subject to externally imposed capital requirements under lending
arrangements in interest-bearing bank borrowings as disclosed in
note 23, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

=+—8" $’§lﬂﬁ§$%1§tt7ﬁ'ﬁ
T BRAEENMBRARRERRZH
TAR 9I\5K§$%EEE’J$E%|J§7I\(:&ZZDW
E23PTREE)  ARBRENMBER

W AZINRE AR TEER S -
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Major Non-cash Transaction

The Group entered into the following non-cash investing activity which
is not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a subsidiary of the
Company, Lianjing Neptunus Fuyao Foods Trading Co., Ltd (“Lianjing
Neptunus Foods”) was voluntarily deregistered. The net asset of
Lianjing Neptunus Foods at the date of deregistration was as follows:—

= vhr 23
‘e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. FEFRERS

AEBEBIILTIHRE KBRS EH
BB RREARRERERARR :

REBEE_Z—tHF+_A=+—BILHF
B AREIMBAREIREIRERM
Z2BERARATEIEBTRM]) BEF
He BT EITRMNEHEEBNEESTE
R -

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Net assets deregistered of: EEHEEFE:
Amount due from an immediate FEU— R BB AR A RIFUIE
holding company 17,648
Add: wavier of amount due from o e ER—HEEER
an immediate holding company UNSIE QL] (17,648)

Contingent Liability
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
contingent liability.
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iR e R Rk I T
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

31. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From 3. EXE BB RS2 EB2HR
Financing Activities
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities AREBELXORE TSy AEEEH T HE
can be classified as follows: mE

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H
Cash-flows: HERE :
— Repayment —EW
— Proceeds — PS8
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—tF
+=A=+-8
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32. Financial Instruments by Categories

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Are BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

32?%%%%@1&
REWBK - SELBTANEEENT :

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
(Restated)
(reE5)
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value ik b/ NS |
through profit or loss E%%E'J%EE?E
Loans and receivables B R EBHR
Trade receivables and bills receivable EH&ZEEW\&EW%‘%E 172,696 176,021
Financial assets included in A E fhEFRIE
other receivables HEREE 18,389 17,498
Fixed deposits TEHEATF R = 4,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReMESEEY 350,724 325,195
541,809 522,714
Financial liabilities -y =Ri
Financial liabilities measured RHEN AT ENERMBE
at amortised cost
Trade and bills payables FERT R R FES R 4R 70,718 67,198
Financial liabilities included in AEMENRENEREE
other payables 81,629 98,819
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 30,000 100,000
Entrusted loans from immediate HBEEARERER
parent company 9,000 9,000
191,347 275,017
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BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables, and entrusted loans from
the immediate parent company. The Group have exposure to the
credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk and interest rate risk arising from
financial instruments. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

33.1 Credit risk
(i)  Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

(i) In respect of trade and other receivables, in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition are performed on each and every
major customer periodically. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. The
Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 90 days from the date of
billing.

33. K EREEEERBE

REENTI2cRTIABRE Re k¥
EEY MERTEE  BRERREM
FEMW I~ BNRR R EMENFIARE
BERARZRER - AEEAXEEER
2 RBETRER EXEREBESHT
B o[EA M R o BKZF E R B R
YT -EEEEENEEZERR -
HEIRIE R KB RUREUE B M1 ©

33.1 FERK
() EERBEGONS —HERE
BXHTEMER M BEBMNE B
BB AEECRABRER{ERE
NEFPRERSRHE RS (0
HA) 1EA R E ZE LEK a5
HEANBR TR R -

(i) Bt FE Y BR R I EL b B M SRR T
5 ORBERR  BEREREE
ERE UHBLEFHEER
% - RS EEREP OB
RENERHEE A E LT -
ZEFAETRELBEREN
B BB A R RRACER I B BTAYE R
BN XEEREP R EER A
EHMEENRERE - A%H
WHERE B EEERIEMm -

BIHARANEREHEIRR

o

it

i3
Rl i)

5

T
/
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEFE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. I EREEEERBUER (B)
Policies (Continued)

33.1 Credit risk (Continued) 33.1 EER (&)

(i) In respect of trade receivables, the Group’'s exposure
to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry and location in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had no significant concentrations of credit risk for
which individual trade or other receivable’s balance exceeds
10% of the total trade and other receivables.

Further quantitative analysis in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 19.

(iv) Deposits with financial institutions
The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing
deposits with financial institutions that meet the established
credit rating or other criteria. Given the counterparties’
high credit ratings, management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

33.2 Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to parent company’s board
approval. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquid fund. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
available unutilised banking facilities RMB70,000,000 (2016: fully
utilised) for loan and issue of bills of details of which are disclosed
in note 23.
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(iv) REBEEEZFR
AEBEFIRS NS BME LR
EEERR ZESSREBCE
AR B RANEEF AT
o ERHFHESZEREER
A BERETEMEARST
TEEEITELE

33.2 REBELREE

AEBETREANEEEREEELRY
MRS ERER BENRSAHR
ETEHRE  UREEEFRHEE
FEeFER HREBEERARESRS
R HEE o NEEFEEM R A E
RFITREFESFRRETEHRE
o HEABREGSFEANES - M
RAEZHBEEIRSRBNERE
EmE UENEHERBARBES
mRe AEBKBRITEEERR
PHESMNEERR - RZT— L F
+ZA=+—H8 AEEAEERKH%
TEBENARBABRTRERARE
70,000,000 C( =T — /N F : BEEF)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tH&+-_A=+—HILFE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
33.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, interest-bearing bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from the applicable interest rate at the end of each

reporting period.

33. IR E IR B AR R BUR (&)

B2 ABESER ()

TRAVNAEEFFTESHABOR
HANIEMA - ZXBREAEEA
RANTHNRFAHNERAERE
RRTHhERK - ABME - B234A
REFER GO B RITIEE T
AREREE MARRTEEAEE
BEBITERERERN - RM3ETE SR A
B EIH B TR AR 1% 5 1O & 5K A B4R
o ZRAFZIFERASRER
B-H5NERERIFR  AIRMER
BRNE2HMBRAERFNE o

2017 2016
“E-tfF It NS
Weighted Total Weighted Total
average Within  contractual average Within  contractual
effective  1year or undiscounted  Carrying effective 1 year or undiscounted Carrying
interestrate ondemand  cashflow  amounts interestrate ondemand  cash flow amounts
MEFH ) MET L)
BRAE R-FRE KRR ERME R-ERE AAERS
% BEERN REAR REfE % BEEZRE  iEgH REE
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)
(m=g)  (g®30)  (BE5)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARMTR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M S3B1TEE
Variable rates &R
— Neptunus Fuyao —BIRE 435% 30000 30,000 30000 485% 100,000 100,000 100,000
Entrusted loans from HERAT
immediate parent ZrtfE
company * - 9,000 9,000 9,000 - 9,000 9,000 9,000
Amount due to the immediate EREBRARGE
parent company - - - - = 411 411 411
Amounts due to fellow ERRAZNEARE
subsidiaries - 31262 31262 31,262 - 37800 37,800 37,800
Amounts due to related companies  FEt B AIZIE - 16 16 16 - 13 13 13
Trade and other payables ARE W AN - 121,069 121,069 121,069 - 124093 124,093 124,093
191,347 191,347 191,347 275017 275017 275,017
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
33.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for interest-bearing bank borrowings
comprised term loans from banks with a requirement on
demand clause. The maturity analysis of the term loans based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements is
summarised as follows. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors of the Company do
not consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that the term loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

3. M EEEIER L

ire B ER R MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

SRR (&)

B2 ARBESER (&)

J«/(Lﬁﬁﬁwmﬁﬁfﬂﬁ% BB IR T A5
BREREEZKRANBETEHER - E
R E SR e P& 15 B 5T 8138 3 T B
ERMEBHA WML T - 25 ¢
HERBRANFES ZE’J%‘JE'HM"
ERINAEENT BN - A
ERE ﬁETTTKT%Eﬁ@E@’]%%
TRAIEERE - ARRESHE %
ETEHERBRIBEERBGHAHE
BEHEERE -

Maturity Analysis — Term loans subject to a repayment on BN -—MEREREBRGANEN
demand clause based on scheduled repayments EXR(RTEBERERE)

Total contractual

Within one year undiscounted

or on demand cash flow
R—FR=R ERRITE Carry amounts
BEEERE REFRERE IREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T AREFT
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tHF
+=BA=+—H 31,211 31,211 30,000
As at 31 December 2016 RIZ—XF
+=-A=+—H 101,891 101,891 100,000
The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments i 2B F R EFER2RPRETH
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if ERFERGETER - B Ll e sk

changes in variable interest rates differ to those effective interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

33.3 Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings
which are at variable interest rate.

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and accumulated losses by approximately
RMB255,000 (2016: approximately RMB400,000).

RYHBEREBEEMRMROABRAE  2017F 57, 141

FTE S BB EETBFIE T ASHN
BaE -

33.3 R=EER

AEBEHAEBNERESHNTHHEA
% TEEAEEUE S EHKHE
RITIEERR -

R-ZE—+&+=—A=+—8 ' {47
RELBHIEAN R A 100 K28 - MATA
HEHEFZTE  AEBAOKRTEE
wmA R 2EEEBRD NG AR
# 255,000 C(ZF—R"F : HARK
400,000 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=) + 23

T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tF+-A=+—BILEE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
33.4 Currency risk

34.

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group’s functional currency is Renminbi
as substantially all the turnover and expenditure are in Renminbi.
The Group’s transactional foreign exchange exposure was
insignificant.

No sensitivity analysis of currency risk was prepared as the impact
was insignificant.

33.5 Fair values

The fair values of fixed deposit, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because of the immediate
or short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of interest-bearing bank borrowings and entrusted
loans from the immediate parent company approximate their fair
values. The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year.

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into certain continuing connected transactions.

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year:

Related party transactions with the immediate parent
company

33. iR EIE B R R BUR (&)

33.4 ¥ ER

33.5

B AT - I A RE SN E R B 6 H R R
R o MNP & KB RS KE D A
ARBE BMEAKENNEEER
AR - REEHZ HINERBEM

HRAFETK  MUBREEEER
BURREDIT

DFE

EHER ReRRSEFEY  BK
ERREMEYRRIE  BHERE
HAi A RIEN AT EEEREER
o RARZFRTANBRNE
HNEEH - ERTERLREBE R
AREERNEEERLAFEMR
B RFEURRRRROHRERA
PRI ABREMSSEKUBATE -

3. ERBEERRS
BARGAMBREL M TERT TS

SN

AREBERAFEANGEBETETT

HNEBRRS -

(a)

(b)

RBE-Z—tF+-A=t—HL
FE  AKEFLETHERERS -

AEERAFERNGEBETETT
FIERZS

HEBSARETHNREIRS

2017 2016
—E-tF ZERF
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BELAB B XHME izt ARBT R ARETT
Neptunus Bio- Immediate parent Interest for the interest-bearing
Engineering company financial assistance
BEEY BEERRA S B 75 B T 718, (i) - 264
Sales of goods (iii)
HEEY 47 -
Notes: B s

(i) The interest arose from the interest-bearing financial
assistance from the immediate parent company which was
charged at 20% above 1-year benchmark leading rate issued
by the People’s Bank of China. The amounts were fully repaid
in 2016.

() BBEANESKEEBIQRMM
BHBHER RBRFEARR
TETH—FHEETRA X
= 20% WEHL ° ZHRIEER =
T RNE2HEE -
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34. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with the intermediate parent
company

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ERBEELXR S (&)

(b) AEBRAFEERG
FIEARS : (&)

HEETETT

BB ARETHHRERRS

2017 2016
—E—tF TT-RF
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Notes RMB000 RMB'000
HELEH B RHME Fitzr ARBTR ARETT
Shenzhen Neptunus Intermediate parent  Rental of office (ii) 1,116 1,024
Group Company Limited company HRABAE
(“Neptunus Group”) HEEATF

AmETRERRHBRAR
(i:E23- 1)
(i) Neptunus Group leased office premises to the Group, the rental of

office premises was charged at pre-agreed rates with reference to
market rates.

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

(i) BEIEEEMARELERAEYE
WMAEYEBRS THRETISERIRE
FE[R BB AU -

HEEANBEARETHNREIRS

2017 2016
—E2-tF N
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Notes RMB000 RMB'000
HER AR LS REME (i ARET R ARETT
Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical ~ Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (iii) 75,170 79,511
Company Limited RZMBAT BERNm
("Neptunus Pharmaceutical”) Sales of goods (i) 1 -
RBTEEERAR HEEY
(5T=EZ]) Services fee (i) 11,215 4
REBIA
Hangzhou Neptunus Bio- Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (iii) 10,981 6,517
engineering Company Limited RZMBAF BERKM
MIETEMTIRERAR
Shandong Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 3,472 2,575

Yihe Pharmaceutical RZHBAR HERY
Company Limited

WREERABEBRAF

YT EERESEEYRMROARATE

20174F 3R 143
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

34. Material Related Party Transactions 3. ERBBERRS (1)
(Continued)
(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b)y AEBRAFENZEEAZESTETT
parties during the year: (Continued) PNERRZS : (8)
Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries HREANBARNETHRELIRS
(Continued) (%)
2017 2016
—B-tF “TRE
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
HELEH BE XH5MHE Pirsr ARBTR ARETT
Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (iii) 7,389 6,667
Technology Development EEL-NG] BEAMKM
Company Limited Sales of goods (iii) 25 2
AMETREREERERAF HEEBY
Anhui Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 18 245
Pharmaceutical EELNG WEEN
Company Limited

ZEETRTBEER LA

Jiamusi Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 442 3,268
Pharmaceutical Company RZARBAT HEEN
Limited)

EREETBEARAR

Hubei Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 23 339
Group Company Limited RZRBAT HEEN
(previous known as Hubei Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Company Limited)
ML TBEEEERAR
(FIBHILETBEERAR)
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34. Material Related Party Transactions

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Are BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE

3. ERBEEL RS (&)

(b) AEBRANFEAND

JIBRRS :

(%)

“E—tF+A=t—HIFE

HEETETT

EEAMBLARNETHNHEELIRS

(Continued) (%)
2017 2016
—B-tf ZERE
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
HER AW B RHME i ARBT R ARBFT
Henan Dongsen Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 1,221 35
Company Limited RZMBAT HEEN
AERRELEERAR
Hubei Neptunus Deming Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 45 274
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ [FZRMBATF HEEN
HILUETRABEERA
Henan Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 846 574
Group Limited (previous known — FIEHIER A HEEM
as “Henan Neptunus Yinhe
Pharmaceutical Company Limited”)
RS TEEEEERA
(mﬁﬂ@@iﬁﬂgﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ)
Guangxi Neptunus Yinhe Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 571 28
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FIZHBEAF] HEEN
BRSTHRIBEERAR
Heilongjiang Province Neptunus Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 353 31
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FZRMEAR HEEN
RETHHTBEERA
AT EEESEENRMRDERATE  2017FF 5 145
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34. Material Related Party Transactions 3. ERBBERRS (1)

(Continued)

(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b)
parties during the year: (Continued)

AREERAEFENGEEETETT
FIBRZS - ()

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

HEAMBLARETHHELIRS

(Continued) (48)
2017 2016
= e A
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
BEREE BE RENE izt ARBT R AREFT
Heilongjiang Shukang Neptunus Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 1,535 -
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FIZKE R HEEM
RELBINRBEER LA
Henan Neptunus Kangrui Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 406 -
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ RRKE A HEEY
AEEIRnEERRAR
Henan Neptunus Baiyue Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 130 -
Pharmaceutical Company Limited R ZH{BAA] HEEN
AESTANBEERAR
Shenzhen Neptunus Canyu Shiye Fellow Subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (iii) 96 -
Company Limited YN BEN M
MTEELEEEER A
Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Shiye  Fellow Subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (iii) 1,034 -
Company Limited EELNG BEN M
MmETREEZER A
Jiangsu Neptunus Jiankang Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 31 -
Bio-technology Co., Ltd. RZARBAR HEEN
TEETREEMERERAR Purchase of goods (iii) 523 =

\\\\\\
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34. Material Related Party Transactions

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(b)

Are BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ERBEEL RS (&)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b) AEERAFENGEBEFETT
parties during the year: (Continued) FIERRS : (%)
Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Continued) HEZNEATETUEESSS (&)
2017 2016
—E2-t% —T5F
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
BELER B XHME i3 ARETR ARETT
Guangdong Neptunus Longkong Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 117 -
Medical Technology Services RRMBAR HEEY
Company Limited
EBRETERERRMBHERD
Sulu Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group ~ Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 392 -
Company Limited (previsous known & ZHEBA HEEN
as Zaozhuang Yinhai Pharmaceutical
Company Limited)
HEETEEEEBRLNA
(RITEEHRER @ﬁ@ al)
Anyang Hengfeng Medicine Co.,Ltd.  Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 194 -
R EEBEARAR EES N HEEY
Shenzhen Quanyaowang Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (iii) 2,860 -
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. RRMBAR HEEM
R EBEERRAR
Related party transactions with related companies HEBARETHEEIRS
2017 2016
“E-t% —ERF
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BER AR BE RHMHE i3 ARET R ARETT
Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical Related company Sales of goods (iii) 18,085 17,018
Company Limited ( “Nepstar BENT HEEY
Pharmaceutical”) Marketing fee (iv) 282 510
FMETERBEERL 2HEM
[ERBE])
Hangzhou Nepstar Health Related company Sales of goods (iii) - 103
Pharmacy Company Limited ENA HERY
nMEIERREERBRAA
R TBEREEEDRMRDBRAE 201755, 147
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34. Material Related Party Transactions 3. ERBBERRS (1)
(Continued)
(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b)y AEBRAFENZEEAZESTETT
parties during the year: (Continued) PNERRZS : (8)
Notes: PET
(i) The purchases, sales and services income received were transacted in (i) BHRAEMNES - HERRBERAT
the normal course of business on the same terms as those charged R—MEFBES REHEME=FH
to and contracted with other third party suppliers and customers HpEr R B P ATR] AR R ET 4048
respectively. [F VIR FETT ©
(iv)  The marketing fees were based on pre-agreed rates with reference (iv) ZiHBRADC2EREASENER
to the volume of purchase of goods from the Group. REER  REFNMENBERH -
(c)  Financing arrangements () mbEZHE
Amounts due to Related interest
related parties expenses
ERREFRE TEEAR SR X
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF —E—tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TE ARETT @ ARWTE ARETRT

Entrusted loans from the BEESRAEFEER

immediate parent company 9,000 9,000 - -
Interest-bearing financial BB ARIM S B E R

assistance from the immediate

parent company - - - 264
Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans and EBNRRAZEERERMETBE
interest-bearing financial assistance from the immediate parent B ER RAG 2 sF BRI 24 &
company are disclosed in note 24 and 34(b)(). 34(b)(i) HHREE ©
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34. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties

Entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company

Amount due to the immediate
parent company

Amount due from intermediate
parent company

Amounts due from/to fellow
subsidiaries:
Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang
Technology Development
Company Limited

Shandong Neptunus Yinhe
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Henan Dongsen Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Hangzhou Neptunus
Bio-engineering Company Limited

Anhui Neptunus Yinhe
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

BERBRAERFMEN

ENEERRRHA

L Gl B ISYNSE e

el R RRNBRRRA :

BIEX
R8T RERIR
BRERATF

LRBERTBRERRAR

AHRREEERAT]

MMEEENTRERAR

ZHETRIBEERAR

75%ﬂﬂ‘rﬁ7‘§£§€4%%§$4ﬂ)ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁw
- - -

iR e Rk AT
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. EXBAES RS ()

(d) HARBENRE R

Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December

W+=A=+-A Rt=B=+-H
EWEELRE EAmELRE
2016 2016
—ERE “ERE
(Restated) (Restated)
(&&=51) (=7
RMB000 RMB'000
AREFL ARETT
9,000
411
31,815
2,829
2,983
‘ 0
20174 54 149
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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34. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)
(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

B EREERRS (1)

(d) MARBEMEESEHS(E)
Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December

Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December

R+=A=t+-AH R+=A=t-H
EWRERER A ERBEFRE
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF ZT-RF “E—tF ZERF
(Restated) (Restated)
(#E5) (fg=71)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT
Amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries &Y,/ FE R 2 B A RIFE
(Continued): (&) :
Henan Neptunus Baiyue AEETEHEEERAA
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 15 - - -
Jiamusi Neptunus Pharmaceutical EAHETBEEARAA
Company Limited 70 1,256 - -
Hubei Neptunus Deming e T ERREER AR
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 20 6 - -
Hubei Neptunus Pengtai LS TMEREERAT
Pharmaceutical Company Limited - " - -
Hubei Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group  #it/E T BEEBHR AR
Company Limited (previous known as  (RIFE#IL/E T B EBRLF])
(Hubei Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited) 6 8 - -
Shenzhen Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical R YIT/E T 77 B 245 &
investment Company Limited BRRA] - 3 - -
Henan Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group AEE T EZEEAR A
Company Limited 12 - - 64
Heilongjiang Province Neptunus ERILETEEBRAR
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 72 30 - -
Hubei Neptunus Enshi Pharmaceutical ~ #iit/8 T BHE SRR AF)
Company Limited - 5 - -
Guangxi Neptunus Yinhe BRGTHRTBEERAR
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 323 16 - -
Shenzhen Neptunus Medical Technology 7 3IIFT B 26R i %2 bx
Research Institute Company Limited BRAT - 1 - -
Sulu Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group BB/ T BEEEBRAF
Company Limited (AIEHREBRESRAR)
(previous known as Zaozhuang
Yinhai Pharmaceutical Company Limited) 179 487 - -
Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang IS TREEEERAF
Shiye Company Limited - - 70 103
Binzhou Neptunus Huanghe BN TENREERAR
Pharmaceutical Company Limited - - - 6
Shenzhen Quanyaowang Pharmaceutical FYlITh 2 E4EEEFRAF
Company Limited 528 - - -
Jiangsu Neptunus Jiankang LEATREEMBHER AR
Bio-technology Company Limited 245 - - -
Yichang Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical E 28T HRAEEERAF
Company Limited b - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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34. Material Related Party Transactions 3. ERBAERRX S (&)
(Continued)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) (d) MARBEMBESEH(E)
Amounts due from Amounts due to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
Rt=A=+-8 W+=B=+-H
EKEERFRE ENBRERRA
2017 2016 2017 2016
it Sl of 2 —EREF k- S of 2 —T-RF
(Restated) (Restated)
(=31 (& =31)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries J@‘MZ/F&v FRZRBARFE

(Continued):
Anyang Hengfeng Pharmaceutical ﬂ&ﬁ\ﬂﬂé SEERD

Company Limited 91 - - -
Henan Neptunus Kangrui Pharmaceutical S7&/8 TEIREEBBE A

Company Limited = - 4 N
Changsha Neptunus Pharmaceutical ROBTBERRAR

Company Limited = - 26 -
Neptunus Baicaotang Pharmaceutical ST BEEEEFR AT

Company Limited - - 31 =
Neptunus Jianchang (Beijing) Medical ~ BTEE (ItR) BEZER

Devices Company Limited BRAR = S 5 -

1,897 3,265 31,262 37,800

Amounts due from/to related companies: B/ FETBIE A BIFE

Nepstar Pharmaceutical EREY 13,153 8,979 - -
Jilin Neptunus Jiangkang EMETREEMRE
Bio-technology Company Limited BRRA] = - 13 13
Shenzhen Hongyang Property ARG IEER
Management Limited ARAT 30 42 - -
Nanning Neptunus Jiangkang HEBTREEMRE
Bio-technology Company Limited BRAA] - 5 3 -
13,183 9,026 16 13

15,218 12,429 40,278 50,924

Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans and financial BER AR EZEXERRMBEENIER R

assistance from the immediate parent company are disclosed in note 24 &4 7 B IR BENKTEE 24 K 34(b)(i) - E2FE]

and 34(b)(i). The balances with these related companies are unsecured, BEBARNGEHRABEERR 2B REAREX

interest-free and repayable on demand. B3 -

*  The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this consolidated financial * EEASNBERT  AEEMBHmRANF X
statements, where indicated, is included for information purpose only, and LN ENBEEAREENZA  TFE
should not be regarded as the English name of such Chinese name. RVERZP XA TE 2 AT o
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34. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(e) As at 31 December, 2017, the Group’s amounts due from related
parties, arising from the ordinary course of business which are
trade in nature, consisted of the following:

3. ERBELRS (

() RZZ—tHF+-A=+—H &%
ERAEEGBETELBES NG
B e Mk R 00 SR IE B T DI B IRARAK ¢

2017 2016
—Z—+tF ZE—RF
(Restated)
(ED)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT

Amounts due from fellow FEUL R R B A Rl5kE
subsidiaries 1,897 3,265

Amounts due from related FENS A& A RIFIA

companies 13,153 8,984
15,050 12,249

The aging analysis of amounts due from related parties based on

ERBR R MmN R RRE T SRR

invoice date is as follows: AT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
(Restated)
(geE5)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFTT
Within 3 months 3EANA 10,168 12,246

More than 3 months but HB@3mEAEL LR 12{MEA

less than 12 months 4,794 3
Over 12 months BiE121EA 88 =
15,050 12,249
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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34. Material Related Party Transactions 3. ERBEERRS (1)

(Continued)

(f)  As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s amounts due to related ) RZE—+tF+-—A=+—"H K&
parties, arising from the ordinary course of business which are ERNBEEBRETELAEESHINE

trade in nature, consisted of the following: B FE T RAE 5 SR IE R 51 B I8 AR ¢

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
(Restated)
(f&&751))
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT

Amount due to intermediate FEfTHR R & A B FUA
parent company - 4111
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FE R Z B A FI5RIAE 31,262 37,800
Amounts due to related companies &5 BB A B FE 16 13
31,278 41,924

The aging analysis of amounts due to related parties based on

ENER A HR BN RETT FRRE D

invoice date is as follows: W
2017 2016
—ZT—tF ZE—RF
(Restated)
(g2&%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Within 3 months 3fEAMA 31,247 35,581

More than 3 months but HBiE3EAELR121EA

less than 12 months 31 5,954
Over 12 months HBiE121EA - 389
31,278 41,924

RYTHBEREEEMRMROABRAE  2017F 5%, 153
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

34. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(9) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 10 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 11, are as follows:

3. ERBELXRS (&)

(9)

TEEEEAEE
AEBXZEEEAEMERESH
FTARAREEZNSE(RHE10P
BRI TFETERFHEEN S
(RAMFE 1 REE) T :

2017 2016

—E—+tF —T-RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBFT

Short-term employee benefits e E B AET 3,079 2,928
Post-employment benefits RRAER 140 102
3,219 3,030

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 8(b)).

(h) The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The disclosures required under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules are provided in the Report of the Directors.

B EBENTE TRA] (R
8(b)) A °

AR Lt (b) R () MBE R R SEKE
HRHHGEM EmRBIE 20EMAE
RIFERER S - GEM EWRAIE 20
ERTMEBESINESTIHRSE -
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35. Commitments

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017
authorised and not provided for in the consolidated financial

Are BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. HKIE
@ UFR-—ZT—+4#+-A=+—H%
BRI EAEEL ARG AN RE

statements were as follows: PEH B
2017 2016
—E—+F TR
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRZE
Contracted for, but not provided for: 25T 4B AR 4%
Property, plant and equipment L EN N 430 352
Intangible assets BREE
Contracted for, but not provided for: 25T #)1E R B
Technical know-how, BERIM
("net of deposits”) (Eilli3-aD) = 1,300
430 1,652

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating lease are payable as follows:

b) R=F—tF+-_A=1t—8" REE
A E AR TH G B R R R TR & K

wEME
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Within 1 year R—FR 1,611 2,298
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 2,431 536
4,042 2,834

The Group as lessee leases office premises under operating leases
arrangements. Leases for the office premises are negotiated for
one to four years term (2016: one to two years). None of the
leases includes contingent rental.

ZK'*I*ETJ%Z‘“%A‘?E S B A S T
NE - MATWNHEANFRALHER—
i@ﬂz(_i—/\ﬂz P —EME) o %

EHEWNBEHAES
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36. "D B M AR R 3
BERAATR 2 MBMARGP R NENE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period includes: e
2017 2016
—E—+tH ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 3,490 4,532
Investments in subsidiaries (note b) M A RIREE (MisEb) 456,520 456,520
Deferred tax assets FIEF IR & B 189 51
Value-added tax recoverable AT EEERR 462 579
460,661 461,682
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables JrE Ui B 3% R E A E LR R TR 94,199 153,451
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY 86,297 10,538
180,496 163,989
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JFEAST BR 3R M o FE A< SR8 5,548 6,050
Entrusted loans from the HESRARMNEZAER
immediate parent company 9,000 9,000
Current taxation BNEATR T8 2,342 2,342
16,890 17,392
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A BTSRRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEFE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company 36. KA TR RE (E)
(Continued)

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company BEAATIR LM RN H BN T E
at the end of the reporting period includes: (Continued) KaE o (48)
2017 2016
—Z—+F ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Net current assets REEEFE 163,606 146,597
Total assets less REERTBERE
current liabilities 624,267 608,279
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred revenue R 340 552
340 552
Net assets BEE 623,927 607,727
Equity =
Equity attributable to RAREE AEGER
owners of the Company
Share capital A& A 167,800 167,800
Reserves (note a) EEACIEEY 456,127 439,927
Total equity RS 623,927 607,727
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company 36. RA TR AT (E)
(Continued)

Note a: Mizta
Movements in equity of the Company for the year were: RATBNAFENERESHNOT -
Statutory
Share reserve Accumulated
premium fund losses Total
AR {E EEAES RitEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBETT ARET T ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2016 RZE—~F—A—H 554,844 3,330 (136,996) 421,178
Profit for the year and total FRENRER

comprehensive income for the year SHEREER - - 18,120 18,120
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—X"F+=ZA=1+—8

1 January 2017 R=—Z—+F—H—H 554,844 3,330 (118,876) 439,298
Profit for the year and total FREHNERFRZEREETE

comprehensive income for the year - - 16,829 16,829
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tE+=ZA=+-H 554,844 3,330 (102,047) 456,127
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36. Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)
Note b:

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017:

ire B ER R T &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

6. AN A MIFAMR T ()

Wb -
LWTAERZZE—+tF+A=+—HAxZ

MEBARZE
Proportion of ownership interest
BRRRERLA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation Class of authorised/issued effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operation shares held and paid up capital interest  the Company subsidiaries Principal activity
FMRIR EE/ BRI REEH A WEAR

RAER EEBY BERHER RARRAFE BRER o) BE  IEXE

Ascendent Bio-Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% - Dormant
Company Limited A L 1T Tme%

VR ENRRERAR

Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao PRC Registered RMB30,000,000 80% 80% - Production and sales
Pharmaceutical Company HE i ARH30,000,0007T of medicine
Limited (“Neptunus Fuyao”)** EEREEEY

BMETREHNERRAT
(NeTRE)*

Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese ~ PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 76% - 95% Production and sales
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd H i AR 10,000,000 of medicine
(“Neptunus Jinxiang”)** EEREEEY

BMNEIERTEREERNT
(MgTeR)*

Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd PRC Registered RMB30,000,000 79.6% - 100% Production and sales
("Fuzhou Fuyao")** HE i ARH30,000,0007T of medicine

BNBEBEERAR EERHEEY
(TEMAEE)

Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical ~ PRC Registered RMB50,000,000 79.8% - 100% Production of medicine
(Lianjiang) Co., Ltd (“Neptunus R E R} AR 50,000,000 HEEY

Fuyao Lianjiang”)** (Note i)
BT RENE(ET)ARAT
(I5tReE1)) *“(W?I)
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T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)
Note b: (Continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017: (Continued)

36. AR A IR R ()

BiaED « (8%)

AT RR-_F—tF+-_A=1t—HEE
MEAREE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRRELA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation Class of authorised/issued effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operation shares held and paid up capital interest  the Company subsidiaries Principal activities
EMRILR Ee/BEF REEH | HEAR

DEEH EXIE BERGER RERRAFE ERER 5B BE  IEER

Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC Registered RMB31,000,000 76.2% - 100% Production of medicine
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) e Rl AR 31,000,000 EEEY)

Company Limited
(“Neptunus Jinxiang
Lianjiang” )* (Note i)

BISRPEHE(EL)ERAT
(TEESRBIL))* (M)

Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - Salesand distribution
Pharmaceutical Company Limited #& Bl AR 10,000,000 T of medicines and
(“Neptunus Changjian”)** (Note iii) healthcare products

RIS TREEEERAT HERDHEm
(DEERR])* (WiLiii) RipkEm

* These companies are registered under the laws of the PRC as limited
liability companies.

# Neptunus Fuyao has controlling interests in Neptunus Jinxiang,
Fuzhou Fuyao, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang and Neptunus Jinxiang
Lianjiang (“Neptunus Fuyao Group”).

* RERRAREBTEAZELAERE
ERA] -

# BIREYHEISR BMEE B
ITRESIMETSRETI(NEER
BEE ) AERER -
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36. Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

Note b:

(Continued)

Notes:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 21 March 2011, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang was newly
formed with a registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which
RMB10,000,000 was paid up during the year 2011. On 17 April
2012, the remaining registered capital of RMB40,000,000 was paid
up.

On 15 August 2011, the board of directors of the Company resolved
to increase the registered capital of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB112,000,000 of which RMB106,400,000
and RMBS5,600,000 will be contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and
Neptunus Jinxiang, respectively. Up to the date of consolidated
financial statements, the formalities for the increase of registered
capital is still in progress.

On 24 June 2011, Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjing was formed with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was
paid up during the year ended 31 December 2011. Additional capital
of RMB21,000,000 was paid up on 17 April 2012. The remaining
registered capital of RMB18,050,000 and RMB950,000 will be
contributed by Neptunus Jinxiang and Neptunus Fuyao respectively.
Up to the date of consolidated financial statements, the formalities
for the increase of registered capital is still in progress.

On 4 January 2013, the Company acquired 100% equity interest
of Neptunus Changjian with a registered capital of R\MB3,000,000.
On 28 January 2013, the registered capital of Neptunus Changjian
was increased to RMB10,000,000 of which additional capital of
RMB7,000,000 was paid.

On 30 May 2011, Lianjiang Neptunus Foods was formed with
registered capital of RMB500,000. On 20 April 2017, the subsidiary
was deregistered under the law of PRC. Details please refer to Note
29.

ire B ER R MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

6. AR BB IFAMR T ()

BiED « (8)

BE

() M-ZE——F=A-+—H BEF&
BUETHAY dMERABARE
50,000,0007T * EHR :f*fﬁ/\
R # 10,000,000 cE X - RZF

——FmMA++EAH - ﬁ%T&HﬁéZM\
E# 40,000,000 T2 T °

R=ZFE——FNA+EB ' AAF
BEESREESIREETNER
& AN/ AR 50,000,000 7T 3 01 =
AER#112,000,000 7T © £ AR
106,400, 0007T & A R #5,600,000
¢/\/U1|JEE/EETEE?:&/§I%%EE
ﬁ HEGFEVBREBE - Binx
MEARHFEDEMRES o

iy RZTE——FXNAZ+WMAB:B8F
SRETIKY  ZMEARBARE
50,000,000t EFRF R B EZZ
——F&+ZA=+—HLEFEARE
10,000,000 7CE & 1 « INERAR
#21,000,000 LER =T — =N
A+EB%f - B TEMERARE
18 050,000 7t & AR % 950,000 7T #%
J /if%%&/ii%ﬁitﬁtﬂﬁ °© %
,v%/:l\?'\?ﬁ}k#&i% BE - EINEMmER
KFEDENEF -

iy MNZZTE—=F—AWA ' ARAKE
BERBR2HBRE  SFHERABAR
#3,000,0007C - R=ZZE—=F— 7
—+N\B - BERENEMELREE
AE#10,000,0007T @ EFHFEINEA
A% 7,000,000 TEfT °

vy R—TBE——FRA=1+H #EIE

TRGAY TMEAEARE

50000075 RZTE—tFWMA=1

C ZH B A RIRE R BEAEEE ©
ﬁ%%%ﬁ‘f 29 °
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T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—T—tFE+-A=+—BILEE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)
Note b: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to the
Neptunus Fuyao Group which has material non-controlling
interest (“NCI"”). The summarised financial information presented

36. AR A IR R ()

BiaED « (8%)

BEE - (48)

TRITEBEEARIFERES ([ FFER
B DHBTRESENER - TXAT
HBRERMEDREMNARMEHTZE

B o
below represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.
2017 2016
—2—+tF ZE—REF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETT
NCI percentage IEERER B L 20% 20%
Current assets RENEE 446,911 513,597
Non-current assets ERBEE 294,520 352,066
Current liabilities nBaE (249,817) (373,191)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (20,554) (22,018)
Net assets BERE 471,060 470,454
Carrying amount of NCI JEZER R A EREE 94,212 94,091
Revenue [ ON 462,379 459,242
Profit for the year REE R 26,606 47,340
Total comprehensive income 2mEURSEEE 26,606 47,340
Profit allocated to NCI BT ISR AE 2 A 5,321 9,468
Dividend paid to NCI S F IR SRS 5,200 5,200
Cash flows generated from/(used in)  #&&EBFT1S,(FTA)
operating activities BER (13,939) 62,165
Cash flows from/(used in) KBRS, (FTR)
investing activities Bem 50,798 (4,801)
Cash flows used in financing activities B E/EBIFTRARER (101,389) (33,308)
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Five Year Financial Summary

- R

G-

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF —T—RF —hF —OE —ET—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTE AREFTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
RESULTS ¥E&
Revenue N 790,286 759,111 721,346 648,268 611,666
Cost of sales SHERA (365,255) (371,905) (368,586) (371,534) (360,504)
Gross profit E7 425,031 387,206 352,760 276,734 251,162
Other revenue Hiplg A 8,915 9,102 8,724 10,345 6,051
Other net income Hp A F5E 853 3,674 3,730 77 1,196
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEAY (262,777) (225,786) (199,412) (116,682) (101,640)
Administrative expenses IHFEX (51,523) (50,441) (58,630) (53,152) (59,039)
Other operating expenses Hifg ez (46,942) (29,200) (50,537) (45,863) (46,478)
Profit from operations Fed =iyl 73,557 94,555 56,635 71,459 51,252
Finance costs B%E A (3,229) (3,886) (10,361) (11,078) (7,684)
Profit before taxation BRBLATER 70,328 90,669 46,274 60,381 43,568
Income tax expense FiigHxX (14,899) (17,852) (14,796) (15,934) 3,430
Profit for the year REERA 55,429 72,817 31,478 44,447 46,998
Attributable to owners of AAREEAEN
the Company 50,257 62,692 21,055 33,174 35,855
Non-controlling interests FEE AR RS 5,172 10,125 10,423 11,273 11,143
55,429 72,817 31,478 44,447 46,998
Assets and liabilities BEHERE
Total assets BEE 1,000,232 1,033,614 1,113,166 1,011,664 914,109
Total liabilities FEY=Lr (250,464) (334,075) (481,244) (411,613) (353,505)
749,768 699,539 631,922 600,051 560,604
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Group Property
L EIES

PROPERTY IN PRC

Gross Group's
Location Intended use Site area floor area interest
ik Jizk:S THEE BEEE EihrEzS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(EFHXK) (FFHK) Bat
Kuigi Village, Industrial 166,109.5 58,434.74 80
Gushan Town,
Jin"an District
Fuzhou City
Fujian Province
The PRC
REREER/MNT I% 166,109.5 58,434.74 80
BRE AR
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